
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 2 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 

Thursday, 9 October 2014  

 

Meeting time: 

09.00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Sarah Beasley 

Committee Clerk 

029 2089 8032 

CELG.committee@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 

MeetingTitle 

 

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions   

2 Scrutiny of Welsh Government 2015-2016 draft budget - Evidence 

session from the Minister for Finance and Government Business and the 

Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty (9.00 - 9.45) (Pages 1 - 17)  

Jane Hutt AM, Minister for Finance and Government Business 

Lesley Griffiths AM, Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty 

Jo Salway, Deputy Director, Strategic Budgeting 

Amelia John, Head of Fairer Futures Division 

3 Scrutiny of Welsh Government 2015-2016 draft budget - Evidence 

session from the Minister for Public Services (9.45 - 11.15) (Pages 18 - 56)  

Leighton Andrews AM, Minister for Public Services 

Reg Kilpatrick, Director, Local Government 

Debra Carter, Deputy Director, Local Government Finance & Performance 

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 (vi) to resolve to exclude the 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



public from the meeting for the following business: items 5 and 6   

5 Scrutiny of Welsh Government 2015-2016 draft budget: discussion of 

evidence sessions 1 and 2 (11.15 - 11.25)  

6 Gender-based Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) 

Bill: discussion of key issues (11.25 - 12.00) (Pages 57 - 70) 

Lunch (12.00 - 13.00) 

7 Scrutiny of Welsh Government 2015-2016 draft budget - Evidence 

session from the Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty (13.00 - 

14.30) (Pages 71 - 110)  

Lesley Griffiths AM, Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty 

Kate Cassidy, Director, Communities & Tackling Poverty  

John Howells, Director of Housing and Regeneration 

Peter Jones, Head of Finance, Local Government and Communities 

8 Scrutiny of Welsh Government 2015-2016 draft budget - Evidence 

session from the Deputy Minister for Culture, Sport and Tourism (14.30 

- 15.30) (Pages 111 - 141)  

Ken Skates AM, Deputy Minister for Culture, Sport and Tourism 

Huw Brodie, Director of Culture & Sport 

Huw Davies, Head of Finance, Culture & Sport 

9 Papers to note  (Pages 142 - 146) 

10 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 (vi) to resolve to exclude the 

public from the remainder of the meeting and from items 1 and 2 of the 

meeting on 23 October 2014   

11 Scrutiny of Welsh Government 2015-2016 draft budget: discussion of 

evidence sessions 3 and 4 (15.30 - 15.40)  

1. FIELD_TITLEFIELD_FOOTNOTE F_PR 

2. FIELD_FOOTNOTE 

FIELD_FOOTNOTE 



FIELD_FOOTNOTE 



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



1 
 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 1  
 
 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

 
Date: 9 October 2014 
 
Time: 9.00am to 9.45pm   

 
Evidence paper – Draft Budget 2015-16: Strategic Integrated Impact 
Assessment 

 
Introduction 

 
1. To provide information to the Communities, Equality and Local Government 

Committee to support scrutiny of the Draft Budget 2015-16.  
 

Background 
 

2. The Welsh Government is committed to assessing the impact of its spending 
decisions on the people of Wales.  At the Draft Budget 2011-12, the Welsh 
Government was the first UK Administration to assess the impact of its spending 
plans.  Since then, the Government has looked to continuously improve the 
approach year on year. 
 

3. The Strategic Integrated Impact Assessment (SIIA) of the Draft Budget 2015-16 
was published as a stand alone document alongside the Draft Budget on 30 
September 2014.   
 
Strategic Context 
 

4. The Programme for Government sets out the Government’s commitment to 
develop a fairer society in which every person is able to make the most of their 
abilities and contribute to the community in which they live.  The Welsh 
Government actively works to consider the impact of its spending decisions, 
including the impact on equality of opportunity, through conducting an impact 
assessment of its budget.  This approach, working effectively across Ministerial 
portfolios and the wider public sector to deliver the outcomes we want to see for 
Wales, is crucial in the current financial and economic climate.   
 

5. The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill will build on this approach and 
enshrine in law six, clear, unified goals for the future of Wales that we will all 
work to achieve – they provide a shared vision for the public sector in Wales.  
These are for a prosperous, resilient, healthier, more equal wales, with cohesive 
communities, and a vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language.    
 

Draft Budget 2015-16: Strategic Integrated Impact Assessment 
 

Pack Page 9



2 
 

6. Last year, the Government set out its intention to move towards a more 
integrated approach to the impact assessment of the budget.  The Government 
concluded that an integrated assessment provided a more realistic assessment 
of the overall impact of spending decisions and recognised that, against a 
backdrop of reducing budgets, there is not always a single answer that will 
manage the impact of a decision in all areas.   
 

7. In line with this, the Welsh Government has produced a strategic and integrated 
assessment of the budget, which considers equality, tackling poverty and socio-
economic disadvantage, children’s rights and Welsh language.  This approach 
reflects the importance of considering the sustainability of decisions and the 
aims and objectives set out in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill, 
including the focus on prevention, collaboration and long-termism.  This 
integrated approach also recognises the relationship between different impacts.   
 

8. The Government’s approach under each area is set out below: 
 

Equality 
  
o The Welsh Government published its Strategic Equality Plan in April 2012, 

following extensive public engagement. The plan and the eight outcome-
focused Equality Objectives within it, identify areas of deep inequality and sets 
out how we propose to tackle these to achieve better outcomes for the people 
of Wales.  

 
o The Equality Act 2010 places a General Equality Duty on Welsh public 

authorities to have 'due regard' to the need to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, as well as to advance equality of 
opportunity and to foster good relations between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. The Specific Duties, as set out 
in the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 are 
designed to assist authorities to comply with their General Duty, and includes 
the requirement to assess potential impacts on equality in decision making. 
The impact assessment of the Budget allows the Welsh Government to 
demonstrate that it has had 'due regard' of the aims of the General Equality 
Duty.  

 
o Further underpinning the Welsh Government's commitment to equality is the 

duty under Section 77 of the Government of Wales Act 2006, to have 
arrangements to ensure that its functions are exercised with due regard to the 
principle that there should be equality of opportunity for all people.  

 
Tackling Poverty and socio-economic disadvantage 

 
o Prioritising the needs of the poorest and protecting those who are most 

disadvantaged and most vulnerable is critical, particularly in the current 
economic climate.  The Strategic Equality Plan and Tackling Poverty Action 
Plan provide an important framework, with action to tackle poverty and action 
to reduce inequalities not only complementing, but also building on one 
another. 

Pack Page 10



3 
 

 
o Evidence shows that people with certain protected characteristics are at 

greater risk of living in low income households and initiatives that tackle 
poverty will therefore have a positive impact on those groups.  We also know 
that certain ethnic minority groups, disabled people, lone parents (who are 
predominantly women), and younger people who are not in employment, 
education and training are more at risk of living in low income households.  In 
particular, disabled people are disproportionately represented in both 
economically inactive and workless households.  We will continue to identify 
opportunities to align the Welsh Government’s Strategic Equality Plan with the 
objectives in the Child Poverty Strategy and the Tackling Poverty Action Plan, 
and support those children and families with certain protected characteristics.   

 
Children’s Rights 

 
o In 2011, Wales became the first UK Administration to incorporate children's 

rights into domestic law with the introduction of the Rights of Children and 
Young Persons (Wales) Measure 2011.  The Measure embeds consideration 
of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and the 
optional protocols into Welsh law.  The main duty required within the 
Measure, under section 1, requires Ministers to have due regard to the 
UNCRC.  The Measure requires all Welsh Ministers to consider children’s 
rights when exercising any of their functions.  The Children’s Rights Scheme 
2014 sets out the arrangements we have in place to comply with the duty to 
have due regard to the UNCRC and reflects the on-going commitment to 
children’s rights.  The process of having due regard can range from thinking 
about the impact of decisions on children in the course of day-to-day work 
activity, through to the formal application of a structured impact assessment 
tool accompanied by a record of the outcome results.  Ministers have 
considered the impacts of their spending decisions on the children and young 
people as part of the SIIA. 

 
Welsh Language 

 
o The Welsh Government wants to see the Welsh language thriving in Wales 

and aims to see an increase in the number of people who both speak and use 
the language.  Welsh Language Impact Assessments are undertaken on all 
policy and legislative proposals taken forward.  In recent years, the 
mainstreaming of Welsh Language issues into policy and programme delivery 
has meant services are developed and made available on a fully bilingual 
basis, with the choice on access left to service users.   

 
o From 2015-16, in line with the duties imposed under the new Welsh Language 

(Wales) Measure 2011, there will be a statutory obligation on those making 
policy decisions to consider the effect on the Welsh language when 
developing policy.  Work is already underway to ensure processes are put in 
place to ensure Welsh Government meet these standards.  A key theme of 
the recent draft Policy Statement A living language: a language for living – 
Moving Forward, is the need for better strategic planning for the Welsh 
language.  Government and civic society must incorporate language planning 

Pack Page 11



4 
 

principles into mainstream strategic planning.  We want leaders to take 
greater responsibility for the Welsh language; and for the promotion of the 
language to be as central to economic development as it is to cultural activity.  
As such, the Well-being of Future Generations Bill will put a thriving Welsh 
language at the heart of defining a sustainable Wales.  This will be an 
important milestone for the language, underlining its official status, and it will 
help ensure that the Welsh language is clearly part of the agenda for Wales’ 
long-term future. 

 
o We have taken steps to consider the impact of this year’s spending plans on 

the Welsh language, but recognise that we are at the start of this process and 
that there is more work to do to embed these practices across government.  
We are committed to improving how we approach assessing the impact of 
expenditure on Welsh Language projects.   

 
Sustainable Development 

 
o Sustainable development (SD) underpins the Government’s spending plans.  

This means ensuring that decisions are financially sustainable.  Equally, it 
means bringing a strong evidence base to bear on decisions about priorities 
and being confident that we balance the short term implications with the 
longer term impact on our strategic objectives.  This kind of consideration 
becomes more important than ever as budgets reduce and we face decisions 
about where to reduce spend rather than where to invest additional resources.  
SD has grown out of the need for a model of development that was not solely 
focused on economic growth, in order to respond to growing environmental 
and social justice awareness.  Sustainable development lies at the heart of 
the Welsh Government’s agenda for Wales and has been at the heart of its 
constitution since 1998.   

 
o The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill will put sustainable 

development at the heart of the Welsh public services, and this means taking 
account of long-term effects, whether they are economic, environmental, or 
social.  The development of the Bill will play a key role in improving our 
understanding of sustainable development in future as well the better 
integration of this work.  Integral to the sustainable development principle set 
out in the Bill is ensuring that decisions are consistent with sustainable 
development behaviours: long term thinking; integration; working across 
organisational boundaries; focusing on prevention; engagement and 
involvement. These define what we mean by good governance for sustainable 
development in the Bill.   

 
Draft Budget 2015-16: Key Decisions 

 
9. The Government has considered the impact of its spending decisions as an 

integral part of the budget planning process.  This means that, in many cases, 
we have already taken steps early on in the budget setting process to mitigate 
negative impacts.  These considerations are reflected in the presentation of the 
SIIA, where we have sought to highlight key decisions, including those resulting 
in a positive impact as well as the steps we have taken to mitigate potential 

Pack Page 12



5 
 

negative impacts.  In taking this approach, it is important that we balance our 
considerations between the various impact assessments in order to identify 
every available opportunity for mitigation.  Examples of the key decisions we 
have taken include: 
 
o Health and Well-being - the additional funding of £225m for health in 2015-16 

responds to evidence from the Nuffield Trust.  This funding will have a 
positive impact on all service users but particularly low-income households, 
as research suggests that spending on public services such as health and 
education reduces inequality.   

 
o Growth and Sustainable Jobs - the additional capital of £90m, including an 

additional £11.2m this year, will support delivery of the Government’s 
investment priorities.  The package includes £37m for a range of housing 
initiatives, £2m to refurbish, expand, relocate or develop Gypsy and Traveller 
Sites and £5m for the new Green Growth Wales scheme, which aims to 
increase and accelerate energy projects to facilitate up to £500m of 
investment in Wales. 

 
o Educational Attainment – the decision to maintain funding to protect schools 

budgets at 1% above the changes in the Wales DEL over this Spending 
Review period will have a positive impact on children and young people, 
particularly in terms of improving the educational attainment of children and 
young people from low income households and reducing the number of those 
not in education, employment or training, which are central to our Tackling 
Poverty Action Plan 

 
o Supporting Children, Families and Deprived Communities - the Welsh 

Government is continuing its support for Universal Benefits, which contribute 
to the creation of a more equal society.  These initiatives support the most 
vulnerable and disadvantaged in society and also those who narrowly miss 
out on means tested support.  

 
10. The reality of reducing budgets means that difficult decisions have to be made.  

Equally, the focus of public expenditure means that those reductions are nearly 
always likely to result in negative impacts.  In this context, the Government has 
remained committed to managing risks in a way that ensures no group faces 
disproportionate impacts – the integrated approach to impact assessments is 
vital to support that work. 
 

11. In some cases, the Welsh Government has judged that the potential impacts 
were too great and changed its plans accordingly.  For example, the emerging 
evidence from the impact assessment highlighted that demographic pressures 
have led to a near doubling in social services expenditure since 2001-02.  These 
concerns have also been echoed by local government.  In considering the 
impact of proposed reductions on local government, the Welsh Government 
changed its plans to respond to this evidence and allocated an additional £10m 
for local authorities in recognition of the pressures in social services and their 
contribution to the health agenda.   
 

Pack Page 13



6 
 

Preventative Spend 
 

12. The Welsh Government recognises that making the maximum use of available 
resources has never been so important, particularly for those delivering public 
services in Wales.  The Government’s commitment to preventative spending, 
which underpins the Draft Budget 2015-16, is an integral part of sustainable 
policy making and is a key element in shaping the decisions made now to reduce 
future pressures on public services.  In line with this, the Government’s spending 
plans help to drive a shift towards preventative spend.   
 

13. Examples of this preventative approach include the follow decisions:  
 
o £17.6m to support immunisation and vaccination programmes, including the 

seasonal flu vaccination for children and shingles vaccinations for older 
people;  
 

o £12.1m for Schools Challenge Programme;   
 

o £5.2m, in 2015-16, to support a range of initiatives aimed at preventing and 
reducing youth crime, predominantly through the Youth Crime Prevention 
Fund; and 
 

o £2.2m to support Advice Services to continue their preventative work which 
offers people advice and support on budgeting, debt and benefits matters, 
with the aim of helping people before they are in a position where they have to 
seek sources of funding such as the Discretionary Assistance Fund.    

 
Evidence  

 
14. Evidence around particular characteristics is still very limited which makes it 

difficult to assess accurately the potential impact of our spending decisions on 
these protected groups.  As part of our commitment to improve the evidence 
base, we have undertaken a review of the evidence on inequality in Wales. 
 

15. In conducting the review, data has largely been obtained from national and UK-
level surveys (the latter disaggregated to Welsh level).  In addition, 
administrative data and smaller surveys have also been used to fill in some of 
the gaps in our knowledge.   It is organised broadly be specific themes (e.g. 
Education, Health, Transport, etc.).  These themes are further broken down by 
protected characteristic. This structure is intended to facilitate users in rapidly 
locating useful information but it also serves a secondary purpose in highlighting 
the remaining gaps in our evidence base.  The report will be published on 6 
October.   
 

16. The report is a living document, which will be updated each year as new survey 
data and new research becomes available.  It is intended as a resource to assist 
consideration of equality impacts as part of the policy development process.   
 

Engagement 
 

Pack Page 14



7 
 

17. Our approach to the Strategic Integrated Impact Assessment has been informed 
by recommendations from a range of stakeholders including the Assembly 
Committees, the Budget Advisory Group for Equality (BAGE) and the Equality 
and Human Rights Commission.   
 
Budget Advisory Group for Equality 
 

18. In the Equality Impact Assessment of the Draft Budget 2013–14 the Welsh 
Government committed to establishing a Welsh Government Budget Advisory 
Group for Equality (BAGE).  This was established in December 2012 and held its 
first meeting in March 2013.  The Group is made up of a number of internal 
Welsh Government representatives and external representatives from the third 
and voluntary sector equality organisations as well as an academic economist as 
an adviser appointed by Welsh Ministers.  
 

19. The Group has a key role in supporting the continuous improvement of the 
Impact Assessment of the Welsh Government’s Budget. It provides a forum for 
sharing and discussing the nature of inequalities in Wales and is a valuable 
source of advice and a key channel for engagement.   
 
Membership 
 

20. In 2012–13, the BAGE was chaired by the Minister for Finance and Government 
Business, who had responsibility for equality.  Since July 2013, the group has 
been co-chaired by the Minister for Finance and Government Business and the 
Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty.  The following groups are 
represented at the BAGE: 

 
o WEN Wales 
o Race Equality First 
o Stonewall 
o Disability Wales 
o Age Cymru 
o UNCRC Monitoring Group 
o Wales TUC 
o WCVA 
o WLGA 
o NHS (Equality Lead) 
o Academic Member (Caroline Joll, Cardiff Business School) 
o Head of Fairer Futures, Welsh Government 
o Head of Strategic Budgeting, Welsh Government 

 
21. The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) is an independent 

advisory organisation and attends the group to provide advice.   
 
Summary of Work 
 

22. A key focus of the Group’s discussions and work to date has been to provide an 
understanding of the Welsh Government Budget process itself, the current 
economic environment, and the limitations these put on our equality 

Pack Page 15



8 
 

considerations.  This has generated a strong focus on the importance of building 
a solid and robust evidence base, and to ensure engagement with people with 
protected characteristics across Wales, so that the nature of the underlying 
equality issues can be identified and understood.   
 

23. The group not only considers the evidence and impact on protected 
characteristics (as detailed in the Equality Act 2010), but also considers the 
evidence around different socio-economic groups.  The Welsh Government is 
committed to taking this broader approach to better understand the nature of 
inequality and to ensure alignment with the Welsh Government’s Tackling 
Poverty Action Plan.  Topics and issues tackled at workshops during this period 
have included the Developing the Evidence Base for Draft Budget 2015-16, 
Impact Assessment Draft Budget 2015-16, How does Government spending on 
public services affect inequality?, the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) 
Bill, the Tackling Poverty Action Plan and the Wales Infrastructure Investment 
Plan. 
 

24. The approach to the impact assessment of the Draft Budget for 2014-15 was 
discussed at the Budget Advisory Group for Equality (BAGE) meetings in 
October 2013 and January 2014.  Members acknowledged the challenge of 
meaningfully impact assessing the budget. The group said that the document 
was too long and provided too much narrative and detail. They said that they 
would welcome a more focused approach and an overview of the key positive 
and negative impacts of budget decisions.  The group suggested that a 
substantially shorter document containing less background information, and 
greater use of graphs and tables would be more publically accessible.  In 
developing the SIIA we have responded to this feedback and our approach was 
endorsed by the Group earlier this year.     

 
Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) 
 

25. An Appreciative Inquiry of the Welsh Government’s approach to the Equality 
Impact Assessment (EIA) of the Draft Budget was published in November 2012.  
It highlighted the Welsh Government’s commitment to improving the EIA of its 
Budget and made positive comments regarding the progress already made.   
 

26. The findings of the Appreciative Inquiry included a series of recommendations to 
improve the EIA further, including an increased focus on strategic decisions and 
improvements to the evidence base.  The Government welcomed the 
recommendations when it published the Impact Assessment of the Draft Budget 
2014-15.  The Government has also considered the recommendations in 
developing its approach for the Draft Budget 2015-16, including the decision to 
move to a more strategic and focused document and the publication of the 
evidence review.   
 
Budget Tour 2014: Priorities and Prospects 
 

27. Over the last six months the Minister for Finance and Government Business has 
undertaken a Budget Tour 2014: Priorities and Prospects, which included a 
series of regional events across Wales.  The tour provided an opportunity to 

Pack Page 16



9 
 

meet and listen to frontline staff working at the sharp end of public service 
delivery - in local authorities, health, housing and the Third Sector.  It also 
included visits to projects to meet people who use these services – such as 
apprentices and pupils, social housing residents and parents - to find out their 
views on the services they receive and which matter most to them. 
 

28. A clear message emerging from the Budget Tour was importance of continuing 
to focus on developing new ways of working together, focussing on prevention 
and early intervention to deliver high quality services for the people of Wales. 
This collaborative approach means closer integration of services but it also 
means working together to develop new and innovative solutions.  In previous 
budgets, the Minister for Finance and Government Business has highlighted the 
importance of investing now to save later. This preventative approach has been 
welcomed throughout the Budget Tour and it is clear that we must continue, 
across the whole of the public sector in Wales, to shift the balance of resources 
towards prevention and early intervention, as far as possible. This approach will 
also support the delivery of high quality services in a way that is sustainable in 
the longer term, in line with the goals of the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Bill and is reflected in the Draft Budget 2015-16.   

 
Further Information 

 
29. This evidence paper should be read in conjunction with the Draft Budget 2015-

16 Narrative and the Strategic Integrated Impact Assessment which can be 
found at:  
 
http://wales.gov.uk/funding/budget/draft-budget-2015-16/?lang=en 
 
 
 
Jane Hutt AM,       
Minister for Finance and Government Business 
 
  
  
Lesley Griffiths AM, 
Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty 

Pack Page 17

http://wales.gov.uk/funding/budget/draft-budget-2015-16/?lang=en


Document is Restricted

Pack Page 18

Agenda Item 3 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



1 

 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 2  
 
 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
 
 
Date:  9 October 2014 
 
Time:  9.45am to 11.15am   
 
Title:  Evidence paper – Local Government Draft Budget Allocations for 2015-16. 
 
 
1. Introduction 

 

This paper provides information to the Committee regarding Local Government future 

programme budget proposals outlined within the Draft Budget which was laid on 

30 September 2014.  It covers Local Government and safer communities.  

 

2. Background 

 

Compared to the indicative plans published at Final Budget 2014-15, the total DEL allocation 

for Local Government has decreased by £85.779m in 2015-16. Within this overall position 

there is a net increase of £25.927m in 2015-16 for transfers into the Revenue Support Grant.   

 

There is no change to the overall capital budget of £22.9m in 2015-16. The Annually Managed 

Expenditure (AME) budget in respect of Fire Services Pensions is reduced to £23.5m, in line 

with the latest estimate.  

 

The following summary financial table shows the overall effect on the LG Departmental 

Expenditure Limit (DEL) baseline budget.  This does not include Annually Managed 

Expenditure (AME) which is outside the Welsh Assembly Government‟s Departmental 

Expenditure Limit.   

 

Summary Financial Table for the LG MEG 

 

 2014-15 

Supplementary 

Budget 

 

 

£000 

 

2015-16 

Indicative 

Plans  

Final 

Budget 

 

£000 

2015-16  

Changes 

 

   

 

£000 

2015-16  

New Plans 

Draft 

Budget 

 

£000 

Resource DEL 4,574,093 4,467,231  -85,779 4,381,452 

Capital DEL 22,920 22,920 0 22,920 

Pack Page 38



2 

 

DEL Baseline 4,597,013 4,490,151 -85,779 4,404,372 

 

 

3. Budget Overview 

 

Local Government Department has three main roles: 

 

o To provide a legislative and funding framework for Local Authorities in Wales, which 

promotes openness, transparency and accountability in the improvement of public 

services; 

o To tackle anti-social behaviour, crime (including the fear of crime) and to work to reduce 

the incidence and impact of fires and other emergencies; and 

o To provide national leadership to ensure all public services work together effectively to 

put people first and to make the most effective use of public money through 

collaboration.  

 

Our approach is set out in the themes identified in Chapters 2 and 7 of the Programme for 

Government.  In this context, our aims refer not just to Local Government but underline our 

partnership approach and apply to the wider public service in Wales.  They include: 

 

o Strengthening local democracy; 

o Supporting continuous improvement in public services; 

o Ensuring our funding supports stronger and more effective service delivery, including 

supporting the delivery of preventative services; 

o Securing effective collaboration between public services; and 

o Ensuring safer communities for all. 

 

In line with this partnership approach I have set out our ambitions for Local Government in 

Wales and announced the intention to consult further and seek views from Local Authorities, 

the wider public sector and the public to inform the development of a draft Bill for consultation 

in the Autumn of 2015.  In addition, our work contributes to many of the aims in the 

Programme for Government through our cross-cutting focus on strengthening public service 

delivery, funding local services and promoting community safety. 

 

Within the overall changes to the Local Government MEG, there are net transfers into the 

Revenue Support Grant totalling £25.927m in 2015-16. The transfers comprise: 

 

o A transfer in of £10m from Reserves for additional funding for Social Services; 

 

o A transfer in of £14m from Reserves for additional funding to deliver  the First Minister‟s 

commitment to protect  school funding; 

 

o A transfer in of £4.6m from the Health and Social Services MEG in respect of Integrated 

Family Support Service; 

 

Pack Page 39



3 

 

o A transfer in of £0.88m from the Health and Social Services MEG in respect of Autistic 

Spectrum Disorders (ASD); 

 

o A transfer out of £2.5m to the Education and Skills MEG in respect of Student Finance; 

 

o A transfer out of £0.54m to the Education and Skills MEG in respect of Education 

Psychologists; and 

 

o A transfer out of £0.49m to the Health and Social Services MEG in respect of Feed 

Safety.  

 

Finally, within the overall changes is a transfer out of £0.13m into the Central Services and 

Administration MEG in respect of PSLG Procurement Programme. There are also a few 

transfers within the MEG to facilitate alignment with the departmental business plan, and the 

bringing together of budgets which focus on local government and public services. 

 

Further details will be provided when the Provisional Local Government Finance Report are 

published on 8 October 2013.  This will set out the amount of Revenue Support Grant the 

Welsh Government proposes to distribute to county and county borough councils in 2015-16 

along with the basis of distribution.  

 

To aid transparency of the Draft Budget changes to the LG MEG, a breakdown by BEL is 

attached at Annex 1. 

 

4.  Programme for Government commitments  

 

Community Support Officers 

 

Provision has been made for the funding of the 500 additional Community Support Officers 

recruited under the Programme for Government Commitment.  Cost estimates have been 

prepared in conjunction with each of the five Police Forces involved and adequate provision 

has been built into plans.  The recruitment target was met in October 2013 and the impact of 

the additional CSOs is being evaluated through externally commissioned research. We 

anticipate the results of this research will be available at the end of this year. We are 

committed to Supporting Children, Families and Deprived Communities by ensuring safer 

communities and so we are protecting the funding for Community Support Officers (CSOs) 

with £16.8m in 2015-16 to maintain our Programme for Government commitment.   

 

Local Government 

 

Local Government expenditure is key to supporting education, social care, housing and a 

range of other services that are designed to give people the best opportunity for healthy, 

prosperous lives.  These investments makes an important contribution to all of our Budget 

themes, including Health and Well-being, Growth and Sustainable Jobs, Educational 

Attainment and Supporting Children, Families and Deprived Communities.  The funding we 

Pack Page 40



4 

 

provide to support communities and services across Wales, also plays a key role in terms of 

preventative spend and tackling poverty. 

 

The overall budget reductions mean a substantial reduction to this budget is unavoidable.  

However, within this, our aim has been to minimise the impact on Local Authorities and protect 

front-line services to, in turn, limit equality impacts at the local level.  This has involved 

critically reviewing our other programmes, encouraging the rolling-in of specific grants into 

revenue support grant to provide greater flexibility, reducing bureaucracy through single 

integrated planning, ensuring new responsibilities placed on Local Authorities are properly 

funded, including those arising from the legislative programme, and providing support for 

transforming and improving services. 

 

In terms of Educational Attainment, we have consistently said that protecting frontline 

spending in schools remains a priority and in this Draft Budget, we are continuing our 

contribution to protecting schools funding at 1% above changes to the Wales DEL.  In total, 

this means that we are providing an additional £14m for schools in 2015-16.   

 

We remain committed to do everything we can to protect the delivery of frontline services, 

particularly where we know that there are important links between health and social services.  

In this context, in addition to the protection we have given to health funding, over the course of 

this Spending Review period we have also looked to cushion local authorities from the full 

impact of the UK Government‟s reductions to our Budget overall.  Whilst the cumulative 

reductions to our Budget mean we cannot continue to fund everything at the same level, we 

have recognised the importance of social services to the health service.  We have listened to 

the concerns of local government in Wales and we are investing an additional £10m in 2015-

16 in recognition of the pressures on social services in Wales.   

 

In total, we are allocating £4.292bn to the Funding Support for Local Government Action in 

2015-16, which provides unhypothecated revenue funding for Unitary Authorities and Police 

and Crime Commissioners to carry out their core functions and duties.  Whilst this represents 

a challenging settlement for Local Government, it follows a number of years of budget stability 

during which the Welsh Government encouraged and supported Local Government to invest in 

transforming services in preparation for challenging settlements ahead.   

 

In line with this approach, we are allocating £34.1m through the Local Government 

Improvement Action to support challenge, openness and accountability in Local Authority 

decision-making and to assess, support and build corporate capacity and incentivise Local 

Authorities to improve service delivery.  This work supports our focus on prevention by 

encouraging consideration of more efficient and effective service delivery options, as well as 

incentivising improvements in the delivery of effective services across Local Authorities.   

 

Whilst this represents a reduction against indicative plans for 2015-16, the reductions will be 

accommodated by driving more efficient and focused delivery of the assessment and support 

of improvement and by taking a more collaborative approach with Local Government. These 

Pack Page 41



5 

 

programmes also make an important contribution towards our investment in Supporting 

Children, Families and Deprived Communities.     

 

While there has been a reduction in the amount of funding for supporting the design and 

delivery of services a significant proportion has been retained to support reshaping the way 

we think about and deliver public services to meet current and future needs of the people of 

Wales.  A core theme of this programme of work is supporting the shift to preventative 

approaches through projects on earlier intervention (missing children; domestic abuse); and on 

joined up services (e.g. on enabling older people to live independently for as long as possible 

or adoption of team around the family approaches).   These projects are identifying and 

sharing best practice on joining up services through national, regional and local leadership 

groups. There are also links here with the tackling poverty agenda – particularly in terms of 

providing joined up services for young people who are NEET (which is a key priority within the 

Tackling Poverty Action Plan). 

 

Domestic Abuse 

 

In 2015-16, we are allocating £4.1m resource and £1m capital in the Domestic Abuse Action to 

support victims of gender-based violence, domestic abuse and sexual violence through the 

provision of funding to both third and statutory organisations to deliver services to victims and 

awareness-raising.  This represents an increase compared to indicative plans for 2015-16 and 

will support the implementation of the Gender-based Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence Bill (Wales) Bill.  The capital increase from £0.3m to £1m will also provide support for 

a range of capital works to help improve the infrastructure of service provision across Wales 

resulting in improved access to these vital services for victims. 

 

Youth Justice 

 

We are maintaining the budget allocation of £5.2m to the Youth Justice Action in 2015-16, to 

support a range of initiatives aimed at preventing and reducing youth crime, predominantly 

through the Youth Crime Prevention Fund, explained further in Sections 5 and 6 as part of our 

key policies and preventative spend.  

 

Fire and Rescue Services 

 

In 2015-16, we are allocating £1m resource and £0.7m capital through the Fire and Rescue 

Services National Framework Action to support fire and road safety preventative activity such 

as Home Fire Safety Checks, youth initiatives, such as Phoenix and Crime and 

Consequences, arson reduction and road safety.  This investment, which contributes towards 

Supporting Children, Families and Deprived Communities, aims to reduce the incidents of fire 

and response calls outs by the Fire and Rescue Authorities (FRAs) by implementing and 

supporting interventions, advice and preventative equipment.   

 

Whilst this budget has been reduced, the revised budget has been allocated in the context of a 

reduction in the overall incidence of accidental and deliberate fires.  In the case of the latter 

Pack Page 42



6 

 

specifically, performance data has shown a reduction in deliberate fires, false alarms, 

malicious calls by young people, and on attacks on fire crews.  FRAs also have a statutory 

duty to promote fire safety in their area, including provision of information and advice, and in 

managing this revised budget we will consider how to focus on the most effective interventions 

and the balance between preventative and responsive activity.  

 

Inspectorates 

 

Following some cuts in previous years all the Inspectorates‟ funding is being maintained at last 

year‟s budget level. This takes account of the increasing pressures and expectations on 

Healthcare Inspectorate Wales, Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales and Estyn. The 

funding that each inspectorate requires in future will continue to be reviewed in light of relevant 

published reports and legislative obligations 

 

 

5.  Key Policies  

 

Local Government   

 

We have engaged extensively with Local Government regarding the settlement for 2015-16 

and have provided Authorities with as much information as possible, as early as possible, 

without pre-empting the publication of the Draft Budget and its formal consideration by the 

Assembly.   

 

In July 2014 the Welsh Government responded to the report of the Commission on Public 

Service Governance and Delivery.  Our initial response to the Commission is set out in the 

paper Devolution, Democracy and Delivery: Improving Public Services in Wales‟ and the White 

Paper, Devolution, Democracy and Delivery: Reforming Local Government which were 

published on 8 July 2014.  The first sets out our response to the broad range of the 

Commission‟s recommendations and the second contains our specific proposals about Local 

Government, the nature of the reform needed and the form that will take. 

 

Specifically, the White Paper sets out a wide ranging set of proposals for reforming local 

government both in terms of strengthening democracy, improving performance and building 

stronger relationships with communities and setting out proposals for a series of Local 

Authority mergers. The White Paper consultation closes on 1 October 2014 and I intend to 

publish further proposals during the Autumn.  

 

The potential cost of merging Local Authorities has attracted a great deal of comment since 

the Commission published its report. We understand this, and the Commission and the Welsh 

Local Government Association (WLGA) have produced very different estimates of the possible 

costs, to which we return below. However, it is essential to put any cost implications into 

context.  

 

Pack Page 43



7 

 

Firstly, the Commission sets out starkly the severe and unsustainable financial pressures on 

our public services. These pressures are likely to continue for at least the next decade, whilst 

the demand for some services increases. Faced with these challenges, inaction is not an 

option. Costs will rise in any event as services begin to buckle under the strain. Neither can we 

afford to wait until a more favourable financial climate returns before we act.  

 

Secondly, the severe financial pressures also mean it is not realistic to expect the Welsh 

Government to provide large injections of cash to meet the cost of mergers as central 

Government has often done in the past when Local Government has been restructured. One 

of the principles guiding these mergers must be to manage them in such a way to maximise 

the benefits and minimise the costs.  

 

Thirdly, we have always been clear this is not just about pounds and pence. It is about 

improved performance, better governance, and stronger democracy, as well as making better 

use of limited resources. Efficiency and value for money are very important, but they are not 

the sole yardstick by which we will measure success.  

 

The WLGA, based on work it commissioned from Deloittes, estimated the cost of mergers at 

between £200 million and £400 million, with recurrent annual savings of between £92 million 

and £100 million. The Commission examined the WLGA figures and concluded for a number 

of reasons they overestimated both the costs and potential savings. The Commission 

suggested the upfront costs might be between £80 million and £100 million, with recurrent 

savings of £60-£80 million per year.  

 

The substantial variance in these figures is not surprising: the estimates of costs depend on 

the assumptions made in producing them, but as there is no precedent for the merger 

programme we are proposing, it is not possible to determine with certainty whether either 

approach is appropriate. However, we do recognise the need to assess the potential costs and 

benefits as far as reasonably practicable, and we will produce a draft Regulatory Impact 

Assessment which will accompany the second Local Government Bill we intend to publish in 

draft for consultation in the Autumn of 2015.  

 

Earlier in 2014, the Minister for Local Government and Government Business asked each 

Authority for information on the approach it had taken to consultation and public engagement 

in setting its 2014-15 budget.  The responses have been analysed and a prospectus of the 

best examples has been published on the Welsh Government‟s website and will be promoted 

to Authorities across Wales.  

 

The Minister also published updates of Local Authority Services Performance and the 

Comparison of Regional Collaborative Areas.  The publications include analyses of aspects of 

spending alongside performance. 

 

The Distribution Sub Group, a working group which supports the Finance Sub Group of the 

Partnership Council for Wales, has continued its work on the detail of the formula for 

Pack Page 44



8 

 

distributing funding between the 22 Unitary Authorities in Wales to ensure the indicators used 

are up-to-date and provide the best available measures of relative need. 

 

Review of Funding Flexibilities  

This review has looked at the options for increasing the flexibility with which Local Authorities 

can make use of the resources provided to them by the Welsh Government.  It has focused in 

particular on the scope to reduce the proportion of funding provided for specific purposes 

rather than as general funding which Local Authorities can use for any purpose within the 

powers available to them.    

 

All relevant grants within my own MEG were depypothecated for 2014-15.  In addition, there 

has been extensive engagement with Ministerial colleagues, a number of whom are reviewing 

the grants in their own portfolios, and we have consistently encouraged Local Government to 

consider ways in which they could provide assurances as to improved performance delivery if 

funding were dehypothecated.  We have also invited Local Government to come forward with 

proposals for other potential mechanisms for providing flexibility. 

 

Scrutiny in Local Government  

I have made provision for the continued support of the Scrutiny Development Programme.  

This programme directly supports the development of scrutiny capability within Local 

Authorities and sponsors the work of the Centre for Public Scrutiny.  In June 2014, the Centre 

launched „Raising the Stakes: Financial Scrutiny in Challenging Times‟ which provides 

guidance to Authorities on the role of scrutiny in making effective budget decisions, including 

the consideration of impacts. 

 

Transparency in Local Government  

Under the ESF project under the Generic Theme of Citizen Engagement over 100 practitioners 

have had accredited training in public engagement, including the Third Sector Making the 

Connections Officers, LSB support and delivery project managers. This enabled them to apply 

the Welsh Government endorsed National Principles for Public Engagement  to improve the 

engagement of the public, service users and wider stakeholders in the delivery and evaluation 

of service improvements and to support Scrutiny in some areas. This can be built on in 2015-

16 to support the engagement aspects of the WFG Bill.  

 

Funding provided to One Voice Wales will help to support the introduction of the requirement 

in the Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 for community councils to publish 

information on the Internet. We will also seek to facilitate a single contract for the provision of 

web-streaming services to local government to assist with the broadcasting of council 

meetings. 

 

Pack Page 45



9 

 

As part of our Reforming Local Government programme, we will consult on ways in which we 

might further encourage greater openness, transparency and accountability in local 

government. 

 

We will continue to provide funding from within the Building Local Democracy budget to follow 

through on the recommendations of the report of the Expert Group on Local Government 

Diversity, with the aim of a diverse set of candidates standing for election to local government 

in 2017. 

 

Community Safety  

 

We are protecting funding for Community Support Officers (CSOs) with £16.8m in 2015-16 to 

maintain our Programme for Government commitment to put 500 CSOs on the beat.  This 

investment makes an important contribution to preventive spend as CSOs work with local 

primary schools on crime prevention; providing reassurance to over-60s groups; helping local 

businesses address shoplifting, as well as taking part in searches, seizures of alcohol and 

tobacco and house to house inquiries for criminal investigations. 

 

Our commitment to improving the lives of vulnerable children and young people is 

demonstrated by our decision to maintain the Youth Crime Prevention Fund (YCPF) at £4.9 

million in 2015-16. The YCPF supports projects which aim to prevent children and young 

people from becoming involved in crime and anti social behaviour. The YCPF is contributing to 

the achievements of the youth justice system in recent years which has seen reducing 

numbers of first time entrants. Between the financial years 2012/13 and 2013/14 there was a 

26.5% reduction in FTE in Wales1. The numbers of children and young people in custody 

continue to fall and in June 2014 there were 47 young people from Wales in custody.2 The 

funding is allocated via a funding formula and is distributed to Youth Offending Teams or 

Community Safety Partnerships in Wales to support local and regional projects. Protecting the 

YCPF will assist in delivering Children and Young People First, a joint Welsh Government 

Youth Justice Board strategy to improve services for young people from Wales at risk of 

becoming involved in, or in, the youth justice system. The strategy was launched and 

published in July 2014, and continues the Welsh Government‟s long-standing approach to 

youth justice, which is to treat those involved in offending behaviour, or at risk of offending, as 

children and young people first. This is in line with the United Nations Convention on the 

Rights of the Child (UNCRC), and with Welsh Ministers‟ duties under the Children and Young 

Persons (Wales) Measure 2011 to have regard to the Convention.  

 

 

Equality, Sustainability and Consideration for the Welsh language  

 

                                                 
1
 "These figures are provisional, the final 2013/14 and 2014/15 figures will be updated in the respective annual Youth 

Justice Statistics publication". 

 
2
 " Note these figures are a monthly snapshot of the custodial population, taken on the last Friday of the month or first 

Friday of the following month, depending on which is nearer to the actual month end" 

 

Pack Page 46



10 

 

Each Local Authority is an autonomous, democratically elected body which is accountable to 

its electorate for the decisions it makes.  Authorities have a series of statutory duties and 

functions, and powers to provide a range of other functions and services.  They deliver a range 

of key services many of which, by their nature, are targeted towards people with protected 

characteristics and make a significant contribution to tackling poverty.  For example, Local 

Authorities have statutory duties to protect children and vulnerable adults and to provide 

education services.  They also have duties to provide many other services, as well as a duty to 

promote the social, economic and environmental well-being of their communities.  It is not 

possible for us to identify the equality impact of the general revenue funding reduction on each 

Local Authority service with precision.  This is because it will vary locally from Authority to 

Authority depending on the decisions each makes in the coming months about its individual 

budget.  For example, some Authorities may join with others to deliver services, some may 

review their charging policies, some may draw on reserves, some may look to outsource 

services, others may look to raise Council Tax in order to mitigate and manage these 

reductions.  Each Authority will make decisions based on local need and priorities and must 

assess the impact of its proposals and decisions on protected groups and in relation to their 

wider functions.   

 

Over the first three years of the 2010 Spending Review period, Local Government in Wales 

was protected from the worst of the cuts to public funding.  In providing this protection, we 

made it clear this was to enable Local Government to rethink and reform services in order to 

prepare for the challenges ahead.  This approach has been underpinned by a programme of 

work taken forward in conjunction with other public service partners under the auspices of the 

Partnership Council for Wales to support collaboration, innovation and the redesign of 

services. 

 

Local Government in Wales has continued to be better supported compared with Authorities in 

England. Over the period  2009-10 to 2014-15 spending per head in Wales by local 

Government has increased by 3% in cash terms this compares with England where spending 

per head in England has reduced by 7%. Spending by Local Government in Wales per head 

of population is approximately £327 higher in 2014-15 than in England. 

 

The challenges are testing but short-term decisions, for example to close leisure centres or 

libraries without consideration of the longer term impacts on health and literacy, will store up 

problems for the future and will not provide a sustainable approach to managing the budget 

reductions.   

 

Alongside these budget considerations, Local Authorities must undertake their own equality 

impact assessments as they progress through their budget-setting processes and we expect 

these to consider fully the implications of their proposed spending decisions. 

 

Monitoring and Evaluation to Demonstrate Value for Money 

 

Numerous papers and analyses developed specifically in connection with the engagement 

arrangements outlined above.  Welsh Government analyses including Local Authority Services 

Pack Page 47



11 

 

Performance 2012-13, Comparison of Regional Collaborative Areas 2014.  Wales Audit Office 

reports including Meeting the Financial Challenges Facing Local Government in Wales.  

Material submitted by Local Government including Local Government Expenditure in Wales: 

Recent Trends and Future Pressures. 

 

Within the funding support for local government is provision for council tax reduction schemes.  

The arrangements for council tax support were subject to a comprehensive review during 2013 

and 2014 schemes.  The review included detailed consideration of numerous sources of 

evidence regarding the experiences and impacts of schemes in 2013-14 including work carried 

out by the Institute for Fiscal Studies, the National Audit Office and our own analysis of data 

collected from each Authority in Wales. 

 

Evaluation work underway on LSB activity and the Regional Collaboration Fund will further 

enhance the information and evidence we hold on delivering new approaches/ best practice 

and provide more evidence to help quantifiable evidence for future planning..  

 

The Welsh Government continues to work with the FRAs in challenging times to provide better 

and more efficient services by targeting resources to achieve better outcomes and to make 

communities safer from the dangers of fire.  

 

The “2012 Onwards” Framework sets out an increase focus on improving efficiency and value 

for money, FRAs need to be innovative in planning and designing their services and consider 

the most effective use of staff in terms of delivering both front line and support services.    

 

 

6.  Preventative Spending  

 

Local Government 

 

Local Government continues to play a key role in the transformation of public services, 

including the drive to increase investment in preventative approaches.  We have worked with 

Local Authorities to actively encourage a shift towards preventative spend, through the Public 

Service Reform programme and we will continue to work in partnership to support Local 

Authorities in managing their budgets in the most efficient and effective ways, both to minimise 

the impact on the delivery of core services now and to reduce demand in the future.   

 

We have also under the Public Services Leadership Group and the LSBs supported work on 

new approaches and integrated working to support preventative approaches. A number of 

projects funded under the Regional Collaboration Fund and the Intermediate Care Fund also 

involve delivery of preventative approaches to improve service user outcomes.  

 

Community Support Officers 

 

Funding for the additional 500 Community Support Officers has been protected as one of the 

“Five for a Fairer Future” commitments in the Programme for Government.  All 500 CSOs have 

Pack Page 48



12 

 

now been recruited and deployed and the funding provides for this level of front-line resource 

to be maintained. CSOs have a crucial role to play in their communities.  Welsh Government 

funded CSOs are working with local primary schools on crime prevention; providing 

reassurance to over-60s groups; helping local businesses address shoplifting, as well as 

taking part in searches, seizures of alcohol and tobacco and house to house inquiries for 

criminal investigations.  They are also active in Communities First Clusters, supporting the 

tackling poverty agenda. The additional 500 Welsh Government CSOs represent a significant 

contribution to the number of officers on the beat in Wales. 

 

We have commissioned the Universities‟ Police Science Institute at Cardiff University (UPSI) 

to appraise the impact of the additional 500 CSOs across the Welsh Forces and British 

Transport Police.  The project formally commenced in March 2013 and the final report is 

expected to be available by the end of 2014.  It will report on the impact of the additional 

Welsh Government investment in making communities feel safer and tackling perceptions of 

crime and anti-social behaviour.   

 

Domestic Abuse 

 

The Domestic Abuse budgets make an important contribution to the preventative spend and 

tackling poverty agendas.  The annual cost of domestic abuse in Wales is estimated to be 

£826.4m and evidence from Co-ordinated Action Against Domestic Abuse (CAADA) suggests 

that, every £1 spent towards domestic abuse services saves the public purse £2.90.  

Emerging evidence also suggests that victims in poverty are more likely to experience gender-

based violence, domestic abuse and sexual violence. The Domestic Abuse Services Grant 

supports these vulnerable people through ensuring services are available to all, regardless of 

gender, ethnicity or social standing.  

 

Youth Justice 

 

The Youth Crime Prevention Fund supports projects aimed at diverting young people away 

from crime and anti-social behaviour.  This includes projects relating to education, training, 

leisure, arts, sports, restorative justice, and initiatives to combat substance misuse.  All 

projects must be relevant to the prevention and reduction of youth crime, and deliver 

collaborative outcomes which meet national and local priorities across a broad range of 

associated priority areas such as child poverty, mental health, domestic abuse and substance 

misuse.  Preventing children at risk of offending from doing so, and keeping them out of the 

justice system, will also help to improve their prospects of training and employment and 

reduce the risk of them getting into poverty.  

 

 

Fire and Rescue Services 

 

In assessing the impact of reductions to the Community Fire Safety Revenue and Capital 

budget, it is important to understand long-term trends in the incidence and severity of fire, and 

thus on the work of the fire service.  The following highlight this: 

Pack Page 49



13 

 

 

o There has been a major, sustained and long-term reduction in the incidence of fires 

across Wales.  2013-14 figures show 53% fewer fires than in 2005-6. 

 

o Data for different categories of fires also show a sustained reduction in the longer term.  

These include fires in dwellings and deliberately-set fires.  Malicious false alarms are 

also falling.   

 

o Death and casualty rates in fires show a similar (and if anything slightly greater) rate of 

decline over the same period.   

 

o While there is some detailed variation, in general these trends are sustained by all three 

Welsh fire services.   

 

Similar trends are also visible in England.  They reflect both the preventative work undertaken 

by fire services and wider changes such as a reduced incidence of smoking and tighter fire 

safety regulations (for instance relating to building and furnishing materials).  It is not possible 

to disentangle the two and to establish exactly how effective preventative work by the fire 

service is or has been.  

 

As a result of the steep decline in the incidence of fire, the work of fire services is increasingly 

focused on preventing fires, reducing the risk of fire and improving fire awareness and fire 

safety, rather than on responding to incidents.  In other words, preventative work is 

increasingly the substantial core business of the service, and is managed and funded 

accordingly.  It should be noted in this context that real-terms expenditure and capacity of 

Welsh fire services has fallen only marginally in the past 10 years.     

 

Community Fire Safety grants have hitherto been used to fund some of this preventative 

activity, including work with vulnerable groups in particular: 

 

o Home Fire Safety Checks: provide advice on safety in the home and smoke detectors 

where appropriate (including hard of hearing alarms and other specialist 

intervention/preventative equipment to protect the most vulnerable)  

 

o Youth initiatives (Phoenix and Crime & Consequences): where children who are 

identified as at the cusp of offending or have offended take part in a programme of 

activity.  

 

o Arson reduction:  working with other agencies to target incidents of arson and anti 

social behaviour. Intervention ranges from overt presence in areas where deliberate fire 

setting is known to occur to education and police action.    

 

o Road Safety: Working with other agencies such as Local Authorities, Police and 

Ambulance Service on work to reduce road traffic collisions.  Work focusses on those at 

Pack Page 50



14 

 

risk of danger (usually 17-24 year age group). This road safety intervention is targeted 

at young drivers of vehicles and the cause and effects of their actions 

 
 

 

7.  Provision for Legislation  

 

Legislation   Action/SPA Resource/Capita £ 

Gender-based 

Violence, Domestic 

Abuse and Sexual 

Violence (Wales) Bill 

Domestic Abuse Resource 383,100 

 

LG (Byelaws) Act 

2012 

  0 

LG (Democracy) Act 

2013 

Building Local 

Democracy 

Resource 8,000 

LG No. 1 (Wales) Bill 

(working title) 

Legislation and 

Transformation 

Resource 0 

LG No. 2 (Wales) Bill 

(working title) 

  0 

 

Local Government No. 1 (Wales) Bill 

To be introduced in January 2015, the Bill will provide the powers necessary to enable and 

facilitate preparatory work for a programme of Local Authority mergers, but it will not contain 

specific merger proposals.  Subject to National Assembly approval, it is anticipated the Bill will 

receive Royal Assent in the autumn 2015.  The Bill will enable the Welsh Ministers to consider 

proposals from Local Authorities seeking to merge early.  It will enable the Local Democracy 

and Boundary Commission for Wales and the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales to 

commence work on electoral arrangements and remuneration for proposed new authorities. It 

will include powers for the Welsh Ministers to require Authorities to establish Joint Transition 

Committees to prepare for merger and powers to enable Ministers to take steps to prevent 

actions by existing or shadow authorities which might be prejudicial to the new merged 

authorities.  The financial impact of the Bill in 2015-16 arises from funding the Local 

Democracy and Boundary Commission to begin work on reviews of electoral arrangements for 

proposed new principal areas. 

We are committed to supporting Authorities wishing to take part in the early merger process.  

As part of this, we will review the initial estimates of such proposals set out in Local 

Authorities‟ expressions of interest and the costs and benefits in the more detailed cases for 

change to follow, and give them consideration within our own budget planning and allocation 

cycle.   

 

Local Government No. 2 (Wales) Bill 

 

Pack Page 51



15 

 

This Bill is the main legislative vehicle for the merger and reform of Local Authorities under the 

Welsh Government‟s Reforming Local Government Programme.  A draft Bill will be issued for 

consultation in the autumn 2015, prior to introduction into the National Assembly following the 

2016 elections.  As such, this Bill has no financial impact in 2015-16 but we will produce a 

draft Regulatory Impact Assessment which will accompany the draft Bill.  

 

 

 

Leighton Andrews AM 

 

Minister for Public Services 

Pack Page 52



16 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT MAIN EXPENDITURE GROUP (MEG)       ANNEX 1  

         

  RESOURCE BUDGET - Departmental Expenditure Limit       £000  

SPA Actions BEL Title 
2014-15                            

Supplementary                       
Budget 

2015-16                      
Indicative 

Budget 
Adjustments 

2015-16           
Draft                   

Budget 

Local Government 
Funding 

Funding Support for Local Government 

Community Support Officer Grant 16,787  16,787    16,787  

Unitary Authority Revenue Funding (RSG & NDR) 4,270,889  4,175,403  -53,682  4,121,721  

Police Gen Revenue Funding  (RSG & NDR) 140,000  136,000    136,000  

Local Govt PFI Revenue Consequences 3,919  33,599  -29,812  3,787  

Transformation and Legislation 3,200  3,400  -455  2,945  

Regional Collaboration Fund 5,174 0 5,174 5,174 

Non Domestic Rates: Collection Costs 5,172  5,172    5,172  

Emergency Financial Assistance Scheme 1  1    1  

Council Tax Reduction Scheme: Pensioner Grant 0  4,000  -4,000  0  

  ACTION TOTAL 4,445,142  4,374,362  -82,775  4,291,587  

Valuation Services 

Valuation Office Agency 8,561  8,861    8,561  

Valuation Tribunal for Wales 1,232  1,232  -32  1,200  

  ACTION TOTAL 9,793  9,793  -32  9,761  

   SPA TOTAL  4,454,935  4,384,155  -82,807  4,301,348  

Safer Communities 

Fire and Rescue Services Resilience Fire and Rescue Services Resilience 5,027  5,027 -250  4,777 

  ACTION TOTAL 5,027  5,027  -250  4,777  

Fire and Rescue Services National Framework Community Fire Safety 2,138  2,025  -995  1,030  

  ACTION TOTAL 2,138  2,025  -995  1,030  

Domestic Abuse Domestic Violence Services Grant 4,000  4,000  100 4,100  

  ACTION TOTAL 4,000  4,000  100  4,100  

Youth Justice Youth Justice Services 5,200  5,200    5,200  

  ACTION TOTAL 5,200  5,200    5,200  

   SPA TOTAL  16,365  16,252  -1,145  15,107  

P
ack P

age 53



17 

 

Improving Services, 
Collaboration  

and Democracy 

Building Local Democracy 

Local Government Scrutiny & Standards 301  301    301  

LGBC General Expenses 520  520    520  

  ACTION TOTAL 821  821    821  

Local Government Improvement 

Outcome Improvement Grants 31,288  31,288  -38 31,250  

Improvement and Audit 2,766  2,765  -524  2,241  

Research and Evaluation 800 800  -200  600 

  ACTION TOTAL 34,853  34,853  -762  34,091  

Intermediate Care Fund Intermediate Care Fund 35,000 0 0 0 

 ACTION TOTAL 35,000 0 0 0 

Supporting Collaboration and Reform 

Local Government Ethics & Regulation 160  160    160  

Local Service Boards & Partnerships 430  430    430  

LSB & Partnerships - ESF Projects 1,119  150    150  

Public Service Reform 1,500  1,500  -1,065  435  

Regulation & Engagement Framework. 194  194  194  

  ACTION TOTAL 3,403  2,434  -1,065  1,369  

  
 SPA TOTAL  74,077  38,108 -1,827 36,281  

Care and Social 
Services 

Inspectorate 
Care and Social Services Inspectorate Care and Social Services Inspectorate 14,461  14,461    14,461  

  SPA Total  14,461  14,461    14,461  

Healthcare 
Inspectorate Wales 

Healthcare Inspectorate Wales Healthcare Inspectorate Wales 2,591  2,591    2,591  

  SPA Total  2,591  2,591    2,591  

Estyn Estyn Estyn Programme Expenditure 11,664  11,664   11,664  

   SPA Total  11,664  11,664   11,664  

              

  

Total Resource - Local Government 

  

4,574,093  4,467,231  -85,779  4,381,452  

 
 
 
 

      

P
ack P

age 54



18 

 

 

  
CAPITAL BUDGET - Departmental Expenditure Limit   

    
  

SPA Actions BEL Title 
2014-15                            

Supplementary                       
Budget 

2015-16                      
Indicative 

Budget 
Adjustments 

2015-16           
Draft                   

Budget 

Local Government 
Funding 

Local Government General Capital Funding General Capital Funding 20,000  20,000    20,000  

  SPA TOTAL  20,000  20,000    20,000  

Safer Communities 

Fire and Rescue Services Resilience Fire and Rescue Services Resilience 1,000  1,000    1,000  

  ACTION TOTAL 1,000  1,000    1,000  

Fire and Rescue Services National Framework Community Fire Safety 1,339  1,339  -669 670  

  ACTION TOTAL 1,339  1,339   -669 670  

Domestic Abuse Domestic Violence Services Grant 300  300   669 969  

  ACTION TOTAL 300  300   669 969  

   SPA TOTAL  2,639  2,639  0  2,639  

Estyn Estyn Estyn - Programme Expenditure 281  281    281  

   SPA TOTAL  281  281    281  

  

Total Capital - Local Government 
  

22,920  22,920   0 22,920  

       

 

Local Government - Summary   
2014-15                            

Supplementary                       
Budget 

2015-16                      
Indicative 

Budget 
Adjustments 

2015-16           
Draft                   

Budget 

 
Revenue DEL   4,574,093  4,467,231  -85,779  4,381,452 

 
Capital DEL   22,920  22,920    22,920  

 
Total DEL - Local Government   4,597,013  4,490,151  -85,779  4,404,372  

P
ack P

age 55



19 

 

 

Pack Page 56



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 57

Agenda Item 6By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 71

Agenda Item 7By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



1 

 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 3  
 

 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

 

 

Date:  9 October 2014 

 

Time:  13.00am to 14.30pm   

 

Title:  Evidence paper on the Draft Budget: 2015-16:  Minister for 

Communities and Tackling Poverty 

 

 

1. Introduction 

 

This paper provides comments and information to the Committee regarding the 

Communities and Tackling Poverty (CTP) portfolio and future programme budget 

proposals outlined within the Draft Budget which was laid on 30 September 2014.  

These proposals reflect the present extent of the portfolio, including Housing and 

Regeneration.  

 

As requested by the Committee, Annex A provides a breakdown of the Draft 

Budget figures for the CTP Major Expenditure Group (MEG), by Action and by 

Budget Expenditure Line (BEL) within each Action 

 

2. Background 

 

Compared to the indicative plans published at Final Budget 2014-15 the total 

DEL allocation for the CTP MEG has increased by £20.54m in 2015-16 to 

£737.444m, which is a result of the Machinery of Government changes which 

took place in September 2014. 

 

There is a decrease in Resource DEL of £11.46m in 2015-16 to £342.024m. 

There is an increase to the capital budget of £32m in 2015-16 to £395.42m to 

support the priorities in the Wales Infrastructure Investment Plan.  

   

The following tables show the overall effect on the CTP Departmental 

Expenditure Limit (DEL) baseline budget.   

 

Summary Financial Tables: 

 

 

Pack Page 89



2 

 

CTP MEG 

 

2014-15 

Supp. 

Budget 

 

 

£000 

  

2015-16 

Indicative 

Plans Final 

Budget 

 

£000 

2015-16  

Changes 

   

 

 

£000 

2015-16 

New Plans 

Draft 

Budget 

 

£000  

Resource DEL 353,933 353,484 -11,460 342,024 

Capital DEL 386,820 363,420 32,000 395,420 

DEL Baseline 740,753 716,904 20,540 737,444 

 

The awards address key portfolio priorities as well as support our key themes of 

tackling poverty and supporting jobs and growth. The capital additions are for the 

following key schemes: 

 

Scheme 2015-16  

£000 

Affordable Housing Land Scheme 10,000 

Houses into Homes 10,000 

Town Centre Loan Scheme 5,000 

Home Improvement Loans 5,000 

Gypsy and Traveller Sites 2,000 

Total 32,000 

 

£30.0m of the awards relate to financial transaction funding and £2.0m is funded 

from traditional capital funding. 

 

Within the overall CTP MEG, the specific elements for the Committee are 

Communities, Equality, Housing and Regeneration. The budgets for those 

elements are summarised in the table below. 

  

Supporting 

Communities and 

People 

2014-15 

Supp. 

Budget 

 

 

£000 

  

2015-16 

Indicative 

Plans Final 

Budget 

 

£000 

2015-16  

Changes 

   

 

 

£000 

2015-16 

New Plans 

Draft 

Budget 

 

£000  

Resource DEL 229,096 226,847 -11,217 215,630 

Capital DEL 378,820 361,420 27,050 388,470 

DEL Baseline 607,916 588,267 15,833 604,100 

 

 

3. Budget Overview 

 

Pack Page 90



3 

 

In drafting our budget proposals for 2015-16, we have adopted an outcomes-

based approach, ensuring our proposed funding allocations reflect our 

overarching Priorities for Wales. Our policies and interventions are at the heart of 

the Welsh Government‟s aim to enable all people in Wales to live in a safe and 

warm home, in a viable and vibrant community. The portfolio makes a strong 

contribution towards health and wellbeing, growth, jobs and training, educational 

attainment, and supporting children, families and deprived communities. We work 

with an overarching  emphasis on tackling poverty by working collaboratively with 

our partners to improve the futures of communities across Wales. 

 

4. Programme for Government 

 

The Department has a number of specific priorities which reflect and support the 

delivery of the Programme for Government: 

 tackling poverty and promoting community resilience including the 

Communities First Programme;  

 mitigating the impact of welfare reform;  

 increasing financial and digital inclusion, including Advice Services, Credit 

Unions and the Discretionary Assistance Fund;  

 supporting families and children, in particular through Flying Start and 

Families First;  

 supporting the development of the Third Sector, enhancing its strategic 

relationship with Government and sustaining its ability to contribute to 

community cohesion and tackling poverty; 

 increasing the supply of affordable housing in Wales; 

 increasing the quality of the housing stock in Wales;  

 enabling more people to remain in their own homes for longer, and free up 

pressures on our health and social service portfolios; 

 developing vibrant, viable and safe communities for the people of Wales to 

live in, enjoy and contribute to their longer term well being and prosperity; 

and 

 promoting equality and inclusion and the rights of children and young 

people.  

 

 

The budget settlement will enable us to continue to make progress towards our 

Programme for Government (PfG) commitments. We are making excellent 

progress towards delivering 10,000 affordable homes in Wales over this 

Assembly term  with 4,474 delivered in the first two years of this government. At 

the same time  we have had to be clear on our priorities particularly given the  

pressures on major budgets such as the Supporting People programme. We 

have begun the process of exploring the implications of these allocations  with 

Pack Page 91



4 

 

our delivery partners highlighting in particular the priority accorded to our PfG 

commitments 

 

Budget allocations have drawn heavily on evidence drawn from research and 

evaluation programmes.  We are placing an increasing emphasis on. Results 

Based Accountability (RBA) which is driving the way in which we work more 

generally. The Supporting People Longitudinal Study will be a source of  

independent research enabling us to evaluate the achievements of the 

programme and develop our understanding of its short and long term impact on 

the people and communities of Wales.  We are also developing a more strategic 

approach to evaluating how we deliver on health learning and poverty outcomes 

right across the portfolio. This will include closer integration of programmes 

previously developed within separate Ministerial portfolios.  

 

 

Delivery of commitments and their associated outcomes is monitored as we 

progress through the year. This includes meetings with key delivery partners 

including Local Authorities, Communities First Clusters and housing associations 

as well as my regular meetings with officials.  We report on progress in the 

Programme for Government Annual Report.  Evaluations are undertaken 

periodically and as appropriate in order to ensure the desired outcomes are being 

achieved and the investments are delivering value for money. 

 

 

 

5. Key policies  

 

Tackling Poverty 

 

The contribution to Tackling Poverty was an explicit factor in deciding the 

changes to be made between the indicative budget for 2015-16 and the draft 

budget.  The impact on socio-economic disadvantage was considered as part of 

the Integrated Impact Assessment of the budget.  The Departmental Chapters in 

the Integrated Impact Assessment contain more information about how the 

impact on poverty has been taken into account in each portfolio.   

 

There is a strong emphasis on ensuring that the right priorities are the focus of 

sustained attention to improve outcomes for low income families. An important 

part of this is bringing different stakeholders (including Government Departments) 

together so resources and expertise are maximised.  So too is the use of 

research and evaluation to support the development and implementation of 

evidence based interventions. The budget of £140,000 for this purpose is being 

maintained.  

 

Communities First 

Pack Page 92



5 

 

 

The Communities First Programme is a key programme within the Tackling 

Poverty Action Plan.  Changes to the programme implemented in 2012 included 

reducing the number of Communities First areas from over 150 to the present 52 

Clusters, managed by 19 Lead Delivery Bodies (LDBs).    This has enabled much 

greater sharing of resources and reduced administration costs, in line with 

previous recommendations of the Wales Audit Office and Public Accounts 

Committee.  The Clusters include all of the 10% most deprived communities in 

Wales (based on data from the Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation 2011) 

together with some neighbouring areas.  24% of the population of Wales live in a 

Communities First area, but the focus of the Programme now is very clearly on 

the most deprived people in those areas, so resources are targeted to those in 

greatest need.  

 

Increasingly, the Communities First infrastructure is being used to provide a 

platform for other programmes and activities, reducing their own costs and 

enabling key partners to engage more directly and effectively with deprived 

communities and make a stronger impact more quickly.  Examples include the 

placement of Job Centre advisers in community facilities, joint working with local 

schools using the Pupil Deprivation Grant, delivery of Over 50s Health Checks in 

CF areas and the Lift Programme supporting people from workless households. 

 

Communities First clusters report delivery against an Outcomes Framework 

under three priorities – Prosperity and Employment; Learning and Fulfilling 

Potential; & Health and Well-being – and a set of related key performance 

measures.  Monitoring of the performance measures reported by Clusters and 

LDBs will enable the LDBs themselves and officials to compare delivery as well 

as spend across all clusters.  The performance measures in Communities First 

(as well as Families First and Flying Start) will be disaggregated where possible 

to give a fuller breakdown of beneficiaries by protected characteristic as well as 

the take up of provision offered through the Welsh medium.  A Process 

Evaluation of the Programme to date is underway.  

 

A reduction of £2.322m in the Communities First budget will be managed so as to 

minimise any impact on delivery, and therefore will not disproportionately impact 

any particular group within the community. This includes where Clusters have a 

higher than average proportion of Welsh speakers or minority ethnic groups or 

those with protected characteristics. Managing the impact of the reduction will be 

achieved by working with LDBs to profile and monitor spend closely and by 

moving funds which  might otherwise be under utilised (for example as a result of 

staff vacancies) to the Clusters and projects which are ready to deliver required 

outcomes. Adopting this flexible approach should achieve full spend of the 

Communities First Programme allocated funding.  On this basis, LDBs are likely 

to achieve outcomes very similar to those predicated in their current Delivery 

Plans.   

Pack Page 93



6 

 

 

In addition, Communities First will maintain its support for Pupil Deprivation Grant 

match funded projects in Communities First areas and increase its focus on 

reducing youth unemployment as a longer term preventative measure to reduce 

poverty.  It will also fully maintain its commitment to the Lift Programme, which 

provides employment and training opportunities to people in workless households 

and those most likely to suffer from persistent poverty.  There are now 9 Lift 

areas in Wales, covering 11 of the Communities First Clusters.  They are utilising 

the main programme infrastructure to reduce administrative costs and ensure Lift 

programme resources are concentrated on supporting the Programme‟s clients to 

the maximum possible extent. 

 

There was an extensive consultation and engagement before the Communities 

First Programme moved to its present shape, including with people with 

protected characteristics. There is contact with Cluster Managers and LDBs at 

monitoring meetings and at quarterly Regional Cluster Meetings, Clusters‟ 

Community Involvement Plans and Delivery Plans are regularly reviewed and 

updated.    

 

Welfare Reform 

 

The Welsh Government‟s assessment of the impact of welfare reform, which 

focuses on working-age people, estimates annual benefit and tax credit 

entitlements in Wales will be reduced by around £900 million in 2015/16. To put 

this overall loss into context, benefit and tax credit expenditure and gross 

disposable household income are estimated to be around £6 billion and £45 

billion respectively in 2015/16. 

 

Around half of this loss is due to the way benefits and tax credits are uprated1. 

Other large financial losses arise from a reduced caseload under Personal 

Independence Payments (PIP) compared to Disability Living Allowance (DLA) 

and the time-limiting of contributory Employment and Support Allowance (ESA) to 

one year for those in the work-related activity group. By contrast, some of the 

Housing Benefit (HB) reforms and the Household Benefit Cap result in much 

smaller total income losses in Wales.  

 

Even after taking account of the impact of changes to pensions and personal 

taxes, the Institute for Fiscal Studies (IFS) estimate the annual loss in Wales will 

be over £700 million in 2015/16. 

 

                                                 
1
 Includes: Switch to uprating most benefits and tax credits by CPI (rather than RPI or the Rossi Index), 1% cap on most 

working-age benefits and tax credits (excluding disability and carers benefits) and Child Benefit, increasing LHA rates by 
the 30th percentile of local market rents rather than the median (included in LHA reforms 2011-12), and increasing LHA 
rates by CPI rather than the 30th percentile of local market rents. 

Pack Page 94



7 

 

Whilst the Welsh Government cannot meet the shortfall created by the welfare 

reform changes, as set out in our Programme for the Government, the Welsh 

Government is committed to take action to mitigate the impacts of the reforms, 

across Government, as far as they can within the context of reducing budgets.   

Some of the mitigation is being funded from within the Communities budget, such 

as additional funding to support front-line advice and support on issues relating to 

welfare benefits, as outlined in the sections on Financial Inclusion and Digital 

Inclusion below.  

 

New eligibility criteria will need to be developed for passported benefits are 

administered by the Welsh Government given the UK Government‟s changes to 

benefits and tax credits. There may be financial implications for the Welsh 

Government budget as a result of the new eligibility criteria. We are in the 

process of assessing such implications. 

 

Finally, the Welsh Government will track very closely the implications of any 

proposed further changes to the welfare system as a consequence of the 

Scottish referendum.   

 

Equality 

We have protected the budget for our Equality and Inclusion Grant (EIG), which 

supports Children, Families and Deprived Communities through its commitment 

to tackling poverty, ensuring social justice and equality of opportunity.  Funding in 

2015-16 will continue to support the projects awarded three year funding from 

April 2014.  The EIG supports our Strategic Equality Plan objectives in aiming to 

tackle poverty, with its emphasis on prevention and early intervention to enable 

people to address inequality and work towards greater equality of opportunity and 

outcome. 

 

Funding of £0.2m for Community Cohesion has also been maintained, with the 

programme aiming to increase collaboration between Local Authorities, 

Community Safety Partnerships, Communities First Partnerships and third sector 

organisations.  Community Cohesion also works to achieve greater participation 

in community life and greater equality of opportunity for groups that are often 

seldom heard, including Gypsies, Travellers, migrants, asylum seekers and 

refugees, thereby supporting communities who often suffer from inequality of 

opportunity. 

 

Financial Inclusion 

 

The Financial Inclusion budget line supports key areas of work relating to Credit 

Unions, Advice Services and the Discretionary Assistance Fund.  

 

Pack Page 95



8 

 

As part of collaborative funding provided to Credit Unions in January 2014, a 

marketing and advertising campaign was run with the aim of supporting the 

sustainability of the movement. Figures show to date, 2,504 new members have 

joined Credit Unions since the start of the campaign.  Work undertaken by 

Beaufort Research in June 2014, as part of the Wales Omnibus Survey, 

highlighted general awareness of Credit Unions in Wales had increased by 6% 

(from 60% to 66%) pre and post the campaign.  

 

In addition to the collaborative funding, in March we committed £1.9million of 

funding, tapering until March 2017, to support the credit union movement. Of this 

total, £0.6m will be provided in 2015-16.  This ongoing support has been given to 

Credit Unions so they are able to provide services to our most financially 

excluded members of society, while continuing to improve their own 

sustainability.  

 

In terms of advice services, we have provided support to the Better Advice: 

Better Lives Scheme, which provides advice on benefit take up. In addition to 

this, advice providers have been offered £2 million funding this financial year to 

support front-line advice services on issues relating to welfare benefits; debt and 

housing and to take forward important aspects of the Advice Services Review, 

including better collaboration between providers and a better and more 

consistent specialist discrimination advice service Wales-wide. These services 

will benefit many of the people in our communities who are bearing the brunt of 

Welfare Reform and who are most likely to be living in poverty. They will benefit 

groups with protected characteristics, particularly through the specialist 

discrimination element, and reach out to people living in more rural parts of 

Wales.   

 

Close monitoring of demand for the Discretionary Assistance Fund has enabled 

me to reprioritise some of the funding originally allocated to this Fund to support 

some of these more preventative services in 2014-15.   Subject to further close 

monitoring and to final budget decisions, I propose to maintain the current level of 

funding for advice services in 2015-16.    

 

The Discretionary Assistance Fund provides emergency assistance to between 

1,500 and 2,000 people each month.  An evaluation of the Fund is currently 

underway.  The Financial Inclusion budget includes provision for continuation of 

the Fund. 

 

Digital Inclusion 

 

Budgetary support will be maintained for Digital Inclusion activities through 

utilising EU funding carried forward from 2014-15.  These activities will contribute 

to meeting the challenging 2017 targets set out in our updated Digital Inclusion 

Delivery Plan published in June 2014.  Options are being considered for future 

Pack Page 96



9 

 

digital inclusion activities, which will be informed by the ongoing evaluation of 

Communities 2.0.   Any successor initiative will build on the many digital inclusion 

activities that are being delivered across Wales both in partnership with, and 

independently of, Communities 2.0.   

 

Third Sector 

 

Following consultation in 2013, Welsh Government has renewed its commitment 

to working closely with the Third Sector in Wales and to supporting its 

development and growth.   This commitment was set out in detail in a fully 

revised Third Sector Scheme, which was itself developed in close partnership 

with the sector through the Third Sector Partnership Council and published in 

January this 2014.    The Scheme incorporates our Code of Practice for Funding 

the Third Sector which sets out 17 Principles and advice on the range of ways in 

which Welsh Government provides funding. 

 

The Third Sector Scheme renews Welsh Government‟s commitment to provide 

core funding for Third Sector infrastructure bodies across Wales, principally 

Wales Council for Voluntary Action (WCVA), County Voluntary Councils (CVCs) 

and Volunteer Centres.  These bodies work closely with each other and ensure 

that consistent advice and guidance is readily available to voluntary organisations 

and individual volunteers anywhere in Wales.    The Third Sector Infrastructure 

budget covers this work, together with grants to support volunteering, the 

Criminal Records Unit within WCVA and core funding for the Community 

Foundation in Wales. 

 

This work will continue in 2015/16 but, in line with the outcomes of the 

consultation, there will be a greater focus within the Third Sector Infrastructure on 

tackling poverty and supporting local communities.    Support for volunteering will 

also be more coherent and the infrastructure bodies will support the changes 

underway to public service delivery in line with Welsh Government‟s response to 

the Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery, including more 

regional working and sharing of resources.   These changes will take account of 

the reduction in the overall Third Sector Infrastructure budget from £7.3million in 

2014/15 to £6.805million in 2015/16.  Proposals developed by the sector for 

funding arrangements for 2015/16 are currently being appraised and final 

decision on allocations will be taken before Christmas, in line with the Code of 

Practice on Funding the Third Sector.   The reduced budget will impact on the 

infrastructure bodies, many of which are also being affected by reductions in 

funding from local authorities or other income streams.    Care will be taken to 

ensure that reductions are distributed fairly so that no individual organisation, 

geographic region or area of work is disproportionately affected. 

 

 

Supporting People Grant 

Pack Page 97



10 

 

 

The Supporting People Programme is a key part of the implementation of the 

Welsh Government‟s policy for Preventing Homelessness which supports 

reducing use of the NHS, long term use of Social Services, tackling poverty and 

initiatives to help get people into education or employment. The Programme is 

used to fund housing related support to vulnerable people. 

 

Given the importance of this budget we have sought to minimise any reduction 

but the budget will be reduced to £124million in 2015-16. Mitigating the impact of 

this reduction will be an important challenge for  Regional Collaborative 

Committees,  Local Authorities and service providers.  All of the agencies 

involved in delivering the programme have been preparing for a reduction in the 

budget with a view to minimising the impact this may have on the availability of 

services.  We are continuing to explore with the National Advisory Board and with 

Regional Collaborative Committees detailed proposals for implementing these 

changes.  

 

We measure the performance of our Supporting People Grant interventions in a 

number of ways. Firstly by considering information submitted by Local Authorities 

to identify how they are spending the grant. Secondly by collecting a range of 

aggregate data which outlines how outcomes are being achieved by the people 

accessing the support. These include measures such as `feeling safer‟, 

`managing money‟ and `managing accommodation‟ in addition to `feeling 

physically healthy‟ and `feeling mentally healthy‟. We have now agreed a 

programme of work with representatives from the voluntary sector and Local 

Authorities leading to collection of more consistent and robust data in future. 

Over the past six months my officials have also undertaken a detailed audit of 

service delivery in two local authority areas. These audits have proved beneficial 

to all parties and have provided improved evidence on scheme impacts.  We will 

be conducting further such audits in 2015-16. 

 

 

Gypsy and Traveller Sites 

 

Gypsy and Traveller Sites Capital Grant funding will increase by £2m from £1.5m 

in 2014-15 to £3.5m in 2015-16. The Sites Capital Grant provides funding for the 

refurbishment of existing and the development of new Local Authority Gypsy and 

Traveller sites. 

 

Changes to the budget should lead to the development of additional Local 

Authority Gypsy and Traveller sites, which will reduce homelessness amongst 

these communities. Wales has a significant undersupply of authorised Gypsy and 

Traveller sites which needs to be addressed. The scale of the need for additional 

pitches (each household unit within a site) has been estimated between 209 – 

243 pitches by the Welsh Government and 326 by Local Authorities themselves.  

Pack Page 98



11 

 

 

Only one Local Authority Gypsy and Traveller site has been opened in Wales 

since 1997 (opened April 2014). This situation has led to a significant 

undersupply of pitches, evidenced by Local Authority Gypsy and Traveller 

accommodation assessments and the number of unauthorised encampments.  

 

An engagement exercise with Local Authorities identified the likely need for 

funding to support proposed projects during 2015-16. An additional £2m was 

deemed sufficient to meet demand in that year. A business case for future years 

funding has been developed, taking into account the new duties contained in the 

Housing (Wales) Act 2014. 

 

Welsh Government is establishing a data collection system which is intended to 

capture the long-term reduction in encampments as a result of new sites. 

 

Welsh Government is proposing new Health Needs Assessments to capture the 

health inequalities experienced by Gypsy and Traveller communities. Changes in 

health access and outcomes over time should be captured by these assessments 

and compared to access to sites. 

 

Local Authority Accommodation Assessments will continue to assess need for 

additional Gypsy and Traveller sites. The Welsh Government will continue to 

review these when analysing the need for Sites Capital Grant funding. 

 

Social Housing Grant and Housing Finance Grant 

 

The Social Housing Grant Programme and the Housing Finance Grant provide 

funding to support the construction or refurbishment of affordable homes for rent 

(social and intermediate) and for equity share (homebuy).  The funding, will be 

used to support a variety of different types of accommodation e.g. flats, 

bungalows, hostels, and refuges, which includes accommodation specifically 

designed for wheelchair users. 

 

Then Social Housing Grant has been allocated £62.3million capital budget for 

2015-16 and the Housing Finance Grant has a £4million revenue budget.  

 

Affordable housing provided with grant funding is built to Design Quality 

Requirements (DQR) and to lifetime homes standards to ensure value for money 

is achieved. Performance is measured against the target of 10,000 affordable 

homes to be delivered in this term of government, with 4,474 homes built in the 

first two years of this government.  Increasing the number of affordable homes 

will be evidenced by Welsh Government statistics on the number of new 

affordable housing delivered each year. The latest statistics for 2013-14 will be 

published in the Autumn. 

 

Pack Page 99



12 

 

Houses into Homes 

 

The overall target is for 5,000 empty properties to be brought back into use 

during this Assembly term.  Already 4,471 properties have been renovated during 

that period. Our Houses into Homes policy is on target and will make more 

homes available to help tackle social issues and regenerate communities. The 

additional award of £10m for 2015-16 will enable us to target more of the 20,000 

empty properties in Wales and realise the benefits of the scheme sooner.  

 

Sheffield Hallam University are almost 2 years into their 3-year evaluation of the 

programme which will be published next year. 

 

Help to Buy - Wales 

 

We are investing over £170million over three years in our Help to Buy Wales 

scheme, which is designed to increase the supply of housing in Wales - helping 

first time buyers and existing home owners purchase a new-build property. 

 

Over 800 applications for loans have been approved under our Help to Buy 

scheme. The scheme is helping to restore confidence in the construction sector 

and enabling more people to get on to the property ladder. During the building 

period, employment in the local community and surrounding area is also being 

supported through the build contract, providing jobs, training opportunity and 

apprenticeships. This is helping to sustain small businesses and support long 

term employment in the area. 

 

The scheme is subject to robust review of detailed management information 

which covers builder activity, buyer activity, lender activity and general financial 

information. 

 

Discussions with HM Treasury on the repayment of Financial Transaction funding 

by the Welsh Government are led by the Minister for Finance and Government 

Business. 

 

Welsh Housing Quality Standards 

 

Our investment in Welsh Housing Quality Standards (WQHS) aims to ensure all 

dwellings are of good quality and suitable for the needs of existing and future 

residents. The Welsh Government set a target for all social landlords to improve 

their housing stock to meet the WHQS as soon as possible, but in any event by 

2020. Current statistical returns supplied by social landlords, anticipate 73% of 

their stock will comply with the Standard by May 2016. 

 

A rigorous Business Plan process is in place which specifically asks landlords 

about the risks associated with welfare reform. Plans developed by Local 

Pack Page 100



13 

 

Housing Association‟s to ensure the delivery of WHQS are currently being 

assessed by our Financial Analysts. In addition all Registered Social Landlords 

and Local Housing Associations are now required to include social clauses in all 

procurement contracts where community benefits can be realised – the outcomes 

will be tracked via Value Wales. 

 

Vibrant and Viable Places (VVP) 

 

The VVP Framework outlines our national regeneration objectives - everybody in 

Wales should live in well-connected vibrant, viable and sustainable communities 

with a strong local economy and good quality of life. It has been aligned with the 

Communities First programme – Prosperous Communities, Learning 

Communities and Healthier Communities.  

 

The main programme will be supported by a £7 million tackling poverty budget for 

a further seven communities in our most deprived areas.  The £7million fund has 

been ring fenced for projects in the top 10 per cent most deprived areas in Wales 

and has been allocated to the local authorities for use in specific areas - either a 

town or an area within a town or city 

 

A robust evaluation framework for VVP is being developed. We have agreed a 

range of indicators against which Local Authorities must set forecasts and report 

performance. 

 

Community Facilities 

 

The Community Facilities Programme (CFP) is a discretionary grant scheme. 

Applications were invited on the basis of individual awards up to £500,000 being 

available. The programme was announced as aiming to offer £10 million between 

now and the end of 2015.  This will still be the case although £4.95 million from 

the Community Facilities Programme (CFP) will be transferred to Flying Start on 

a non-recurrent basis in 2015-16.   This is likely to mean between five and ten 

community capital projects will not gain funding in 2015/16.   The decision to 

transfer funds to Flying Start was based on the greater long term, preventative 

impact of investment in high quality provision for early years, including childcare 

and parenting support.  The decision is consistent with promoting the rights of 

children, as required by the Rights of Children and Young Persons (Wales) 

Measure 2011. The transfer will support achievement of the Government‟s target 

of doubling the number of children under 4 benefiting from Flying Start to 36,000 

by the end of this Assembly term. 

 

 

 

Equality, sustainability and consideration for the Welsh language  

 

Pack Page 101



14 

 

In applying sustainable development to the budget process within CTP, decisions 

have been made which reflect the five key principles of sustainable development: 

 

 Collaboration – recognising  many of the solutions to the „sustainability‟ 

challenges Wales faces cannot be solved by one organisation. We will 

continue to pursue opportunities for collaboration across Government and 

with other partners, including the third sector, in order that programmes and 

services reach into the communities that most need them. 

 Integration – for example our Flying Start, Families First and Communities 

First programmes have shared outcomes promoting prosperity and 

employment, learning and fulfilling potential, and health and well-being.  Our 

programmes also help deliver objectives in our Strategic Equality Plan. 

 Long term – investing in early years and family support, since the evidence is 

that this will have greater benefits in the long term.   

 Prevention – seeking to tackle problems at source, rather than tackling the 

consequences of these problems at a later date.  Prevention and early 

intervention is an approach which not only benefits people and communities 

but has the potential to generate long term cost savings. This approach is at 

the heart of our tackling poverty programmes and in our approach to tackling 

the inequalities experienced by those with protected characteristics. 

 Citizen centred / engagement – recognising the importance of involving 

people in the decisions that affect them: for example community involvement 

is a key feature of the Communities First programme.   

 

Prioritising the needs of the poorest and protecting those who are most 

disadvantaged and most vulnerable is critical, particularly in the current economic 

climate. The Strategic Equality Plan and Tackling Poverty Action Plan provide an 

important framework for these efforts. In particular, action to tackle poverty and 

action to reduce inequalities not only complement, but also build on one another. 

Evidence shows people with certain protected characteristics are at greater risk 

of living in low income households and initiatives that tackle poverty will therefore 

have a positive impact on those groups.  We also know certain ethnic minority 

groups, disabled people, lone parents (who are predominantly women), and 

younger people who are not in employment, education and training are more at 

risk of living in low income households. In particular, disabled people are 

disproportionately represented in both economically inactive and workless 

households. We will continue to identify opportunities to “dovetail” the Welsh 

Government‟s Strategic Equality Plan with the objectives in the Child Poverty 

Strategy and our Tackling Poverty Action Plan, and support those children and 

families with certain protected characteristics. There is already a greater 

emphasis on monitoring the outcomes of those groups at risk of living in poverty 

and those with protected characteristics within the programmes within the 

Communities and Tackling Poverty portfolio.  

 

Pack Page 102



15 

 

As part of our programme of research to assess the impact of the welfare reforms 

in Wales, we have considered impacts on those with protected characteristics. 

The findings from this research show  working-age disabled households, and 

particularly those on low incomes, will see significantly greater income losses on 

average than working-age non-disabled households as a result of the UK 

government‟s tax and welfare reforms. In addition, the research shows lone 

parents, most of whom are female, are particularly hard hit by the reforms 

compared to other household types (e.g. pensioners). This reflects the fact such 

households are more reliant on benefits and/or are particularly reliant on those 

benefits which have been cut the most2. We are using the findings from this 

research to help target our mitigating actions towards those who need the most 

support. 

 

Evidence that Gypsies and Travellers experience improved access to services 

when living on authorised Gypsy and Traveller sites is supported by many 

research studies, including the Equality and Human Rights Commission‟s 

„Inequalities experienced by Gypsy and Traveller communities: A review,‟ (2009). 

Estyn has also recognised its importance for children‟s education. The provision 

of more sites will demonstrate Welsh Government is helping to „facilitate the 

traditional Gypsy way of life‟ (as required by the European Court of Human 

Rights case, Chapman v UK, 2001).  

 

Further research clearly evidences the link between improved health and 

educational outcomes for children and young people when they are able to live in 

a safe and warm home in a secure community. The funding we have provided for 

our Major Repairs Allowance and Social Housing Grant Programmes will help 

drive up these outcomes. 

 

 

6. Preventative Spending 

 

Preventative spend remains a key theme of this portfolio.  Evidence suggests 

investing in early years development is one of the most financially sustainable 

and effective ways to tackle poverty, leading to better outcomes for the individual 

child as well as reducing the necessity for costly interventions in later years.  This 

long-term view is consistent with the sustainable development approach 

embedded in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill.  

 

Communities First is in many respects a preventative programme, delivering key 

resources to the most deprived areas of Wales and working closely with local 

people to design and deliver solutions to local problems.    The programme has 

been cited as playing an important role in reducing tension and promoting 

                                                 
2
 Phillips, D. (2014) The distributional effects of the UK Government‟s tax and welfare reforms in 

Wales: an update.  

Pack Page 103



16 

 

community cohesion in some areas.  More generally it provides a platform for 

delivery of community focussed action with a strong emphasis on community 

involvement and working with people most in need of support. 

 

The Supporting People Grant is a key preventative spend programme which 

allows people to remain at home for longer and frees up pressure on the NHS 

and Social Services. Whilst the Supporting Budget was protected last year we 

have decided to protect the Homeless budget this year due to the increased 

demands this budget is facing to deliver the Homelessness elements of the 

Housing Bill. This means the Supporting People Grant falls to £124.4million in 

2015-16. 

 

The Homelessness budget of £11.3million contributes significantly to preventing 

people from becoming homeless and the costs this incurs for Local Authorities 

once they have fallen into this situation. The fund will also deliver key 

components of the Housing Bill as The Housing Bill will place early prevention at 

the centre of Local Authority homelessness duties, and will complement 

measures we are taking in other areas such as social services, domestic abuse 

and youth justice  

 

The funding in the draft budget for Independent Living of £4.4m in 2015-16 is 

also preventative spend. This funding provides the physical adaptions people 

need to remain in their homes and not have to go into hospital or care homes. 

The funding  also enables patients to leave hospitals sooner and return home by 

making the small scale adaptions they need and thereby freeing up hospital 

resources sooner 

 

Similar principles underpin Welsh Government‟s continuing support for the Third 

Sector in Wales, recognising that thousands of voluntary and community 

organisations in every part of the country play a vital role in supporting individuals 

and groups, thereby reducing the burden on public services.   Health charities 

and support groups, for example, provide support for people with a wide range of 

health problems who might otherwise be more reliant on the NHS.  These 

organisations in turn require advice and support to ensure they are well run and 

sustainable.  With increased focus on good governance and a steady increase in 

the regulatory frameworks which impact on voluntary groups, Welsh 

Government‟s Third Sector Infrastructure funding ensures that consistent and 

reliable advice is available to voluntary organisations and individual volunteers 

across Wales. 

 

The monies provided to Advice Services is preventative funding, whether around 

debt advice or benefit take up. As highlighted above, this aims to ensure people 

are supported before they find themselves in a position where they have to seek 

other sources of help or even funding. 

 

Pack Page 104



17 

 

Our continued investment in Digital Inclusion is a prime example of preventative 

funding as it improves peoples‟ quality of life by helping people find work and 

making their money stretch further through cheaper and more accessible online 

goods and services.  Digital services like skype and online support groups can 

also help reduce isolation and aid independent living, thereby improving Health 

and Well-being and potentially reducing pressure on health budgets.  Budgetary 

support will be maintained for Digital Inclusion through utilising EU funding 

carried forward from 2014-15.  Our digital inclusion programme contributes 

directly to tackling poverty, as demonstrated by the recently extended digital 

inclusion targets set out in the Tackling Poverty Action Plan.   Digitally excluded 

citizens are assisted to obtain basic ICT skills to help increase their chances of 

getting work and save money by purchasing cheaper and more accessible online 

goods and services.  Investing in a more digitally inclusive society is a prime 

example of preventative spend, which will enable more savings to be generated 

from increased use of digital public services. 

 

In the longer term, the creation of more Gypsy and Traveller sites will have a 

positive knock on effect on Social Housing as it will free up more housing if 

Gypsies and Travellers are able to move onto a new site. Census 2011 showed 

Gypsies and Travellers were more than twice as likely to live in social housing as 

the overall population of England and Wales (41 per cent compared to 16 per 

cent). 

 

 

7. Legislation 

 

The Housing (Wales) Bill 

 

The Housing (Wales) Bill became the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 when it received 

Royal Assent in mid September 2014. 

 

Since its introduction in November 2013, the Bill has been accompanied by an 

Explanatory Memorandum, which included a Regulatory Impact Assessment, 

setting out the financial implications of the various provisions contained within the 

Bill.  

 

The additional costs to the Welsh Government of implementing the legislation in 

2015-2016 have been identified as: 

• £800,000 for Part 1 (Regulation of Private Rented Housing); and 

•  £5,900,000 for Part 2 (Homelessness) 

 

FEI Bill 

 

The Welsh Government does not support the Financial Education and Inclusion 

Bill (hereafter the Bill) and the Government will oppose the Bill at Stage 1. The 

Pack Page 105



18 

 

RIA to the Bill currently contains very rough costs of implementing the Bill to the 

Welsh Government and wider public sector. The Welsh Government believes 

that the RIA would benefit from more detail around some of the cost calculations 

to improve the robustness of financial information supplied. Notwithstanding this, 

the Welsh Government‟s budget remains fully committed at this time and 

therefore if the Bill were to become law these costs would have to be reprioritised 

from existing budgets. 

 

 

 

Lesley Griffiths AM 

Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty 

 

 

 

Pack Page 106



19 

 

 

Annex A 

 

 

  REVENUE BUDGET - Departmental Expenditure Limit         

SPA Actions BEL 2014-15 
Supplementary 

Budget New Plans 
June 2014 

2015-16 
Baseline 

Changes Draft Budget 
2015-16 

Supporting 
Communities 
and People 

Third Sector Third Sector 7,300  7,000  -195  6,805  

 Third Sector 7,300  7,000  -195  6,805  

Tackling Poverty Financial Inclusion 15,977  14,977  200  15,177  

Digital Inclusion 1,000  1,000  -1,000  0  

Welfare Reform 145  0  0  0  

Communities First 39,450  38,383  -2,322  36,061  

Child Poverty Policy 140  140  0  140  

Tackling Poverty 56,712  54,500  -3,122  51,378  

Total Supporting Communities and People 64,012 61,500 -3,317 58,183 

Equality and 
Inclusion 

Equality and Inclusion Community Cohesion 200  200  0  200  

Equality and Inclusion Fund 1,645  1,645  0  1,645  

Equality and Inclusion 1,845  1,845  0  1,845  

Total Equality and Inclusion 1,845 1,845 0 1,845 

Housing 
Policy 

Supporting People Supporting People Grant 134,359  130,218  -5,809  124,409  

Homelessness Homelessness 6,431  11,331  0  11,331  

Independent Living Home improvement Agencies 4,191  4,191  -135  4,056  

Rapid Response Adaptation Programme 432  432    432  

Independent Living 4,623  4,623  -135  4,488  

Policy Development and 
Implementation 

Policy Development and 
Implementation 

1,702  1,702  -450  1,252  

P
ack P

age 107



20 

 

Policy Development and 
Implementation 

1,702  1,702  -450  1,252  

 Total Housing Policy 
147,115 147,874 -6,394 141,480  

Homes and 
Places 

Achieve quality Housing Welsh Housing Quality Standards 274  274  -174  100  

 Achieve quality Housing 274 274 -174 100 

Increase the Supply and 
Choice of Affordable 
Quality Housing 

Housing Enablers 95  95    95  

Support for Social Housing 4,000  4,000  100  4,100  

Increase the Supply and Choice of 
Housing 

4,095  4,095  100  4,195  

Policy research and 
evaluation 

Affordable homes 0  0  30  30  

Policy research and evaluation 362  312  720  1,032  

Policy research and evaluation 362  312  750  1,062  

Increase the Supply and 
Choice of Market 
Housing 

Increase the Supply and Choice of 
Market Housing 

0  0  30  30  

Regeneration 
  
  

Implementation of Strategic 
Regeneration Areas 

3,827  3,381  -1,436  1,945  

Manage Delivery of Legacy 
Regeneration Areas  

6,790  6,790  0  6,790  

Regeneration 10,617  10,171  -1,436  8,735  

  
Total Homes and Places 15,348  14,852  -730  14,122  

  
Total Revenue - Communities and Tackling Poverty 228,320  226,071  -10,441  215,630  

 

 

 

 

 

P
ack P

age 108



21 

 

  CAPITAL BUDGET - Departmental Expenditure Limit 
  

        

SPA Actions BEL 2014-15 
Supplementary 

Budget New Plans 
June 2014 

2015-16 
Baseline 

Changes Draft Budget 
2015-16 

Communities 
and Tackling 
Poverty 

Communities and 
Tackling Poverty 

Community Facilities 10,950  10,950  -4,950  6,000  

Gypsy Travellers 1,500  1,500  2,000  3,500  

 Communities and Tackling Poverty 12,450  12,450  -2,950  9,500  

 
Total Communities and Tackling Poverty 12,450 12,450 -2,950 9,500 

Housing 
Policy 

Independent Living Rapid Response Adaptation Programme 1,641  1,641  0  1,641  

 Independent Living 1,641 1,641 0 1,641 

Intermediate Care Fund Intermediate Care Fund 15,000  0  0  0  

 Intermediate Care Fund 15,000 0 0 0 

Empty Properties 
Programme 

Empty Properties Programme 0  0  10,000  10,000  

  Empty Properties Programme 0 0 10,000 10,000 

  
 Total Housing Policy 16,641  1,641  10,000  11,641  

Homes and 
Places 

Achieve Quality Housing Major Repairs Allowance 108,000  108,000    108,000  

Housing General Support 37,470  37,470    37,470  

Renewal Areas 11,537  11,537  -3,508  8,029  

Home improvements Loan 0  0  5,000  5,000  

 Achieve quality housing 157,007  157,007  1,492  158,499  

Increase the Supply and 
Choice of Affordable 
Quality Housing 

Social Housing Grants (HSG) 53,833  57,833  0  57,833  

Land for Housing 13,700  0  10,000  10,000  

P
ack P

age 109



22 

 

Extra care 4,301  4,301  0  4,301  

Increase the supply and choice of 
Quality Housing 

71,834  62,134  10,000  72,134  

Increase the Supply and 
Choice of Market 
Housing 

Help to Buy Wales 69,000  71,000  0  71,000  

 Help to Buy Wales 69,000  71,000  0  71,000  

Regeneration  Implementation of Strategic 
Regeneration Areas 

39,600  44,900  3,508  48,408  

Manage Delivery of Legacy 
Regeneration Areas  

1,400  1,400  0  1,400  

Local Authority Regeneration General 
Capital Funding  

10,888  10,888  0  10,888  

Town Centre Regeneration  0  0  5,000  5,000  

Total Regeneration 51,888  57,188  8,508  65,696  

  
Total Homes and Places 
  

349,729  347,329  20,000  367,329  

  
Total Capital - Communities and Tackling Poverty 
  

378,820  361,420  27,050  388,470  

       

 Total DEL Budget Communities and Tackling Poverty 2014-15 
Supplementary 

Budget New Plans 
June 2014 

2015-16 
Baseline 

Changes Draft Budget 
2015-16 

  Revenue DEL   228,320  226,071  -10,441  215,630  

  Capital DEL   378,820  361,420  27,050  388,470  

  Total DEL   607,140  587,491  16,609  604,100  

 

P
ack P

age 110



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 111

Agenda Item 8By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 4 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
 
 
 
Date:  9 October 2014 
 
Time:  14:30 -15:30   
 
Title:  Evidence paper on the Draft Budget: 

Deputy Minister for Culture, Sport and Tourism 
 
 

 
Introduction 
 

1. This paper provides background financial information to the 
Committee regarding my spending plans as the Deputy Minister for 
Culture, Sport and Tourism – in respect of the Culture & Sport 
budgets within my portfolio, as outlined within the Draft Budget.  

 
2. Annex A gives a breakdown of the Draft Budget figures for Culture & 

Sport, by Action, and by Budget Expenditure Line (BEL) within each 
Action.  

 
3. The Committee has requested information on specific budgetary 

matters as set out in the Annex to the letter inviting me to attend the 
Committee session. Responses are incorporated within this Evidence 
paper. 

 
Background and Summary 

 
4. The draft budget figures for Culture & Sport may be summarised as 

follows: 
  

Pack Page 125



 

2 

 

 
Spending Programme Area 

 
Supp. 

Budget 
2014-15 

£’000 

 
Indicative 

Plans 
2015-16 

£’000 

 
 

Changes 
2015-16 

£’000 

 
Draft 

Budget 
2015-16 

£’000 

Revenue:     

Arts 33,408 33,158 -615 32,543 

Museums, archives and libraries 37,045 36,695 -525 36,170 

Sports and physical activity 23,739 23,474 -291 23,183 

Media and Publishing 3,726 3,626 -100 3,526 

The historic and natural environment 12,141 12,086 2,600 14,686 

     

TOTAL REVENUE 110,059 109,039 1,069 110,108 

     

Capital:     

Arts  355 355 0 355 

Museums, archives and libraries 7,343 4,243 500 4,743 

Sports and physical activity 345 5,345 0 5,345 

Media and Publishing 25 25 35 60 

The historic and natural environment  5,126 5,126 -725 4,401 

     

TOTAL CAPITAL 13,194 15,094 -190 14,904 

     

TOTAL DEL BUDGET 123,253 124,133 879 125,012 

     

Annually Managed Expenditure 
(Pension provisions) 

2,740 3,013 0 3,013 

     

TOTAL BUDGET 125,993 127,146 879 128,025 

     

 
 

5. The revenue budget figures include an additional non cash budget of 
£3m for the historic environment. If this is excluded, revenue budgets 
have reduced by 1.8% against the previous indicative plans, and by 
2.8% compared to the Supplementary Budget figures for 2014-15. 
Further details are set out below. 

 
Budget Priorities 

 
6. The Culture and Sport portfolio is at the heart of the Welsh 

Government‟s aim to enrich the lives of individuals and communities 
through our culture, heritage and sport by enabling more people to 
enjoy them.  The portfolio also makes a contribution towards health 
and wellbeing, growth and jobs, educational attainment, and 
supporting children, families and communities, including the tackling 
poverty agenda. 

 

Pack Page 126



 

3 

 

7. Culture and Sport policies have sustainable development at their core, 
balancing the pressing short term needs and long term interests of 
the people of Wales.  For example, improving participation in sport 
and physical activity is an integral and important part of our whole 
Government approach to raising levels of physical activity in Wales 
and improving the health and well-being of the nation. 

 
8. In shaping the Budget proposals, alignment with the following priorities 

have been at the forefront: 
 

 increasing rates of physical activity to help improve health; 

 strengthening the contribution that the portfolio makes to the 
economy; and 

 broadening appreciation of and participation in culture and heritage 
in support of the Tackling Poverty Action Plan, and particularly 
among young people. 

 
Budget changes - Revenue 

 
9. Compared to the supplementary budget figures for 2014-15, the main 

budget changes for 2015-16, showing the reductions to the budgets 
(near cash revenue budgets) of the bodies funded from the Culture & 
Sport portfolio, are as follows:   

 

 
 
Organisation 

 
Supp. 

Budget 
2014-15 

£’000 

 
Draft 

Budget 
2015-16 

£’000 

 
 
 

% 
reduction 

Revenue (Near Cash):    

Arts Council of Wales 32,621 31,671 2.9 

National Museum  Wales 22,236 21,886 1.6 

National Library of Wales 9,921 9,721 2.0 

Sport Wales 22,929 22,373 2.4 

Cadw 9,110 8,820 3.2 

The Royal Commission for 
Ancient and Historic 
Monuments in Wales 

1,962 1,807 7.9 

Welsh Books Council 3,726 3,526 5.4 

National Botanic Garden 660 650 1.5 

 
 

Pack Page 127



 

4 

 

Budget changes – Capital 
 

10. The following additional allocations have been made to capital 
budgets: 

 

 
Spending Programme Area 

 
Supp. 

Budget 
2014-15 

£’000 

 
Draft 

Budget 
2015-16 

£’000 

National Library of Wales 3,300 200 

Sport and physical activity -  5,000 

   

Total 3,300 5,200 

 
11. The £3.5m National Library of Wales project is part of wider strategic 

investment in the Library‟s physical and technical infrastructure 
following the fire in April 2013.  This funding will also enable the 
Library to develop its specialist storage facilities to conserve and 
maintain access to collections of national importance. 

 
12. In line with the priority to increase rates of physical activity to improve 

health, funding of £5m is being allocated in 2015-16 for a Capital 
Loan Scheme for Sport and Leisure Facilities.  The new pilot scheme 
will facilitate a strategic and integrated invest-to-save approach to 
Capital investment.  It is aimed at improving the management and 
efficiency of sport and leisure assets and facilities, increasing 
participation in sport and physical activity and contributing to health 
outcomes. 

 
Annually Managed Expenditure 
 

13. Annually Managed Expenditure budgets comprise provision for any 
pension charges which may be necessary in respect of the pension 
schemes of Amgueddfa Cymru – National Museum Wales and the 
National Library of Wales. The total for 2014-15 is £2.740m, 
increasing to £3.013m in 2015-16. This is a non cash budget. 

 
 
RESPONSES TO THE SPECIFIC INFORMATION REQUESTED BY THE 
COMMITTEE 
 

14. Responses to the specific information requested by the Committee 
are as follows: 

 
Last year’s budget report 
 

15. A copy of the Budget Expenditure Lines is attached at Annex A. 
 

Pack Page 128



 

5 

 

 
 
Programme for Government commitments 
 

16. All Programme for Government commitments are deliverable from 
within the available budget. It is a question of prioritising the work 
from within the overall budgets. Clearly there will be pressures on 
budgets – particularly those of WGSBs who are responsible for 
delivering some of the commitments. However, discussions which my 
officials have had, have stressed the priority of delivering PfG 
commitments. This will be set out clearly in the Remit Letters which I 
will be issuing to the WGSBs. 
 

17. We have a Departmental Evidence Plan which shows more generally 
the research and evaluation which grounds our work in evidence. 
Results Based Accountability (RBA) is driving the way in which we 
work. A strategic approach is being developed to evaluate how we 
deliver on health (physical activity) and on learning and poverty 
outcomes. 

 
18. Delivery of commitments and their associated outcomes is monitored 

as we progress through the year. This includes the meetings I will be 
having with the Chairs and Chief Executives of the sponsored bodies, 
and the discussions at the Quarterly Monitoring meetings at official 
level. Achievement is then reported in the Programme for 
Government Annual Report. Evaluations are undertaken periodically 
and as appropriate in order to ensure that the desired outcomes are 
being achieved and that the investments are delivering value for 
money. 

 
Key policies 
 
Budget allocations 
 

19. Extensive discussions were held with the organisations charged with 
delivering policies within the Culture & Sport portfolio as part of the 
process of deciding on budget allocations. The difficult budget 
position was discussed with all of the bodies during meetings at 
senior level. All of the bodies were asked to provide information 
based on scenarios for reductions to their budgets – indicating what 
the impacts would be, including impacts on the delivery of 
Programme for Government commitments and any equality 
considerations. The proposals have been fully evaluated to ensure to 
deliver savings whilst minimising the impact on services and 
programme delivery.  

 

Pack Page 129



 

6 

 

Implementation of the Historic Environment Strategy 
 

20. The budget allocation for the historic environment has reduced as 
follows: 

 

 2014-15 
£m 

2015-16 
£m 

% 
change 

Revenue – near cash 11.072 10.627 -4.0 

Non cash 0.409 3.409 N/A 

Capital 5.031 4.306 -14.4 

    

Total 16.512 18.342  11.1 

 
21. The reduction in the near cash revenue budget of 4.0% reflects 

ambitions for Cadw‟s income to increase. The budget figure for 2014-
15 of £11.072m shown above is net of Cadw‟s income budget of £5m. 
It is anticipated that the income figure for next year will be higher as a 
result of the completion of the Heritage Tourism project which is 
developing visitor facilities, increased marketing initiatives together 
with price increases at key monuments. The latest estimate is some 
£5.3m, which would mean that next year‟s gross revenue budget 
would only be some 1% below this year‟s budget. 

 
22. The capital budget has been reduced next year as the Heritage 

Tourism Project is scheduled to be completed this year. Cadw‟s 
capital requirements beyond 2015-16 will be reassessed as part of 
next year‟s budget round. 

 
23. There are no additional costs arising as a consequence of the 

Heritage Bill in 2015-16, with the exception of staffing costs, because 
the Bill is not scheduled to receive Royal Assent until spring 2016, 
with implementation from the financial year 2016/2017 onwards. 

 
24. Cadw‟s budget allocation supports the outcomes identified in my 

Historic Environment Strategy for the protection of our heritage and 
encouragement of public access, enjoyment and participation. 
Funded activities will contribute to the quality of place, enhance 
people‟s life changes and help to address the tackling poverty agenda 
thought the development of skills and training opportunities. 

 
Decision not to merge Cadw and the Royal Commission and impact on budget 
allocations 

 
25. The decision not to merge Cadw and the Royal Commission has had 

no material impact on the allocations for the historic environment. Had 
the bodies been merged, the intention broadly was to combine the 
budgets of the two bodies, and look for efficiencies over time. There 
has been a reduction of £250k (3.2%) for Cadw, and £155k (7.9%) for 
the Royal Commission. However, this has been due to the need to 

Pack Page 130



 

7 

 

find revenue budget reductions, and not due to the decision not to 
merge the two bodies. The budget reduction for the Royal 
Commission is higher because their budget was only reduced by 
£10k last year. 

 
Allocations for the National Museums of Wales and the National Library of Wales  

 
26. These budgets have been afforded a degree of protection to reflect 

the fact these are national institutions, and that some 75% of their 
costs relate to staffing – therefore there is a limit to what they can do 
to achieve reductions in their costs. Provision of free entry to these 
institutions is a Programme for Government commitment. The budget 
for the National Library has been retained at the planned figure for 
2015-16, being a reduction of £200k (2.0%) compared to 2014-15; 
and for the National Museums has been reduced by £250k compared 
to the planned figure, giving a total reduction of £350k (1.6%) 
compared to 2014-15. 

 
27. Following full protection afforded last year to the funding of CyMAL: 

Museums Archives and Libraries Wales in order to implement 
national strategies for the sector, the funding is being reduced by a 
total of £325k. The available funding will be prioritised to develop 
partnership working and sustainable services to maintain and develop 
these valued public services. There is continued support for the 
development of Casgliad y Werin Cymru – People‟s Collection Wales, 
but with reduced funding of £100k (which forms part of the above 
total). 

 
How has the continuing need to tackle barriers to arts participation and to 
promote access to the arts in schools impacted on budget allocations for the arts 
 

28. Difficult decisions have had to be made on the arts, as with other 
budget headings. However the budget reduction for the Arts Council 
of Wales for 2015-16 has been limited to 2.9%, and this reflects the 
work which it will be undertaking in implementing Dai Smith's Review 
of arts in education, and in developing the role of the arts in tackling 
poverty.   
 

29. As over 80% of ACW‟s grant-in-aid is directed towards supporting the 
core costs of its 72 „Revenue Funded Organisations‟ the reduced 
budget will clearly have some impact.  However it was made clear to 
ACW in their Remit Letter that despite the budget pressures, 
improving access to the arts, and levels of participation in the arts, 
remain two of my key priorities for ACW. 

 
30. ACW is also a lottery distributor.  Under the National Lottery Act 2006, 

distributors cannot use lottery funds to replace „lost‟ government 
funding. However, they can use lottery funds to supplement 
government funding. As confirmed in a joint Statement with the 

Pack Page 131



 

8 

 

Minister for Education and Skills in July, ACW has agreed to commit 
£10 million of its lottery money, over the next five years, towards our 
National Plan for Creative Learning. This will augment the additional 
£10m that the Welsh Government will provide, from the Education 
budget.  

 
Priorities for the media and broadcasting policy in Wales and how these are 
reflected in budget allocations 
 

31. Welsh Government funding for the publishing industry is channelled 
through the Welsh Books Council. This includes funding for a Welsh-
language on-line news service, Golwg 360, which has an average 
daily visit rate of over 8,000 and support for Welsh-medium news and 
current affairs publications Golwg, Y Cymro and Barn. 
 

32. Budget provision for the Welsh Books Council is being reduced by 
£200k in 2015-16. The funding to the Books Council also supports 
English-language magazines which cover several areas including 
current affairs/culture. The magazines franchise has recently been re-
advertised and will again include provision for a general magazine 
covering topical Welsh affairs. It is intended that the budget provision 
for the media element of the Welsh Books Council‟s budget will 
largely be protected. 

 
33. The Programme for Government commitments in terms of 

broadcasting involve staff resource (funded from the Central Services 
and Administration MEG) as opposed to programme funding from the 
MEG. 

 
Impact to date of budget reduction for the Welsh Books Council and 
discontinuation of funding for the Community Radio Fund 
 
Welsh Books Council  
 

34. I am conscious that the budget allocation for the Welsh Books Council 
is very challenging as they strive to sustain the quality and selection 
of books produced in order to ensure the best possible provision for 
readers. Inevitably, budget constraints will result in a small reduction 
in the number of books published. 
 

35. So far the Welsh Books Council has accommodated the reductions 
without impacting on book sales. This was reflected in the fact that 
sales through the Welsh Books Council during the 2013-14 financial 
year showed an increase of 5% on the previous year. Sales for the 
first five months of this year have also shown a slight increase. 

 
36. The Welsh Books Council is a relatively small organisation within a 

small portfolio and has to make the best use of its resources therefore 
further reductions to its budget will inevitably have an impact on the 

Pack Page 132



 

9 

 

services the Council can provide. However, I am confident that the 
Welsh Books Council will be able to continue to support the 
publishing industry in both languages. 

 
 
 
Community Radio Fund  
 

37. The Community Radio Fund (CRF) was established in 2008 in 
recognition of the important role played by community radio stations 
within their communities.  It was set up as a five year Fund with the 
specific aim of helping to meet the core costs of running community 
radio stations.  Being a five year Fund, the CRF was due to come to 
an end in 2012-13 but a decision was taken to extend it for a further 
year, giving community radio stations an opportunity to investigate 
alternative sources of funding and to prepare to become self-sufficient 
post March 2014. 
 

38. During the final year of the Fund the Welsh Government liaised 
closely with all community radio stations who were in receipt of a 
grant from the CRF to advise them of other pots of funding which may 
be available from the Welsh Government.  The community radio 
stations were alerted to the launch of the Community Facilities 
Programme on 3 February. In addition, the Minister for Communities 
and Tackling Poverty announced on 22 January that voluntary 
organisations that provide services to communities across Wales 
were to benefit from £7.2 million of new Welsh Government funding 
this year. Some community radio stations could have been eligible to 
access funding from those schemes, if they met the relevant criteria. 

 
39. In February 2014 the Department for Culture, Media and Sport 

published a consultation on community radio. Recommendations 
included: 

 

 lifting the restrictions which prevent some community radio 
stations from taking any income from on-air advertising or 
sponsorship if they overlap with a commercial radio license whose 
coverage includes 150,000 adults or fewer 

 lifting the restrictions which prevent community radio stations from 
taking more than 50% of their annual income from on-air 
advertising and sponsorship. 
 

40. The Welsh Government responded to that consultation stating that it 
welcomed any relaxation of the restrictions and/or changes to the 
restrictions which would assist community radio stations affected by 
the regulations, to enable them to continue to provide the valuable 
service they offer within their communities. The Department has not 
yet responded to the consultation. 
 

Pack Page 133



 

10 

 

 
 

Pack Page 134



 

11 

 

Sport and active recreation 
 

41. The letter from the Committee asks „Bearing in mind your comment to 
the Committee in June 2014 that the last year has seen „a significant 
reorientation in policy‟ with regard to sport and active recreation, how 
has this been reflected in draft budget allocations‟? 

 
42. The budget allocation for Sport Wales reflects the importance of the 

sport and physical activity agenda.  I will be discussing with Sport 
Wales how we can prioritise the programmes they deliver, to achieve 
our objective of increasing participation, and to achieve the benefits 
that brings in terms of wellbeing and improved health. 

 
43. For 2015-16, in line with the priority to increase rates of physical 

activity to improve health, funding of £5m is being allocated for a 
Capital Loan Scheme for Sport and Leisure Facilities.  The new pilot 
scheme will facilitate a strategic and integrated invest-to-save 
approach to Capital investment.  It is aimed at improving the 
management and efficiency of sport and leisure assets and facilities, 
increasing participation in sport and physical activity and contributing 
to health outcomes. 

 
What work have you undertaken to monitor and mitigate the impact of the 
reduction in local government funding on the delivery of local services within your 
portfolio area (e.g. library, museum and archive services; local sport and leisure 
services; smaller and third sector organisations working in the fields of the 
historic environment and the arts) 
 

44. All local authorities in Wales face extremely difficult budget pressures, 
in particular on how to maintain services and facilities provided on a 
non-statutory basis.  How local authorities set their budgets in relation 
to non-statutory services is a matter for those authorities and the 
Welsh Government does not possess the power to intervene. 

 
45. All local authorities have been encouraged to take full account of the 

extent to which culture, leisure and sport are valued by the many 
thousands of citizens that use them and the value they bring.  Whilst I 
recognise the difficult challenges all local authorities face I will be 
working to promote best practise, in terms of approaching decisions in 
a way that is joined up and in examining alternative service delivery 
models. Many authorities are now actively pursuing this, for example 
by forming - or considering forming - independent trusts and other 
non-profit distributing organisations (NPDOs). 

How equality, sustainability and consideration for the Welsh language have 
influenced budget allocations 
 

46. Integrated impact assessments have been undertaken this year for 
the budget lines showing the most significant budget reductions within 

Pack Page 135



 

12 

 

the Culture & Sport portfolio, namely the Arts Council. The results of 
these, and the impact assessments undertaken last year for all 
budget lines where budgets were reduced, is that there are unlikely to 
be disproportionate impacts on groups with protected characteristics, 
or in terms of sustainability or the Welsh language. 

 
47. The nature of my portfolio is that much of the work is discharged by 

the organisations which I fund. I will be asking these bodies again this 
year, in their Remit Letters and Funding Letters, to ensure that they 
fully take into account equality, sustainability and Welsh language 
considerations in the detailed decisions they will be taking on budget 
allocations. 

 
48. Monitoring and evaluation is carried out in such a way that is tailor 

made to the individual activity, within the wide range of policy areas of 
my portfolio. 

 
Preventative spending 

 
49. The most obvious example of preventative spend in my portfolio is 

spending to increase physical fitness. There is a clear evidence base 
that substantiates the link between physical fitness and healthy life 
expectancy. This was a factor that was taken into account in deciding 
the allocation of the budget to Sport Wales. We do of course need to 
continue to improve the effectiveness of our spending in this area, 
and evaluate how far increases in habits of physical activity among 
young people are maintained into lifetime habits, if spending is to 
really deliver the potential of being “preventative” in terms of reducing 
public spending on health in later life.  

 
50. I would also highlight other respects in which spending in my portfolio 

has the potential to be preventative: 
 

 Most parts of my portfolio (e.g. sport, the arts, libraries, heritage 
and access to the historic and natural environment) are likely to 
make a contribution to mental well-being. The costs of mental 
illness to the Welsh economy are significant. The First Incomplete 
Field Guide to Wellbeing in Libraries highlights the contribution 
made to support the health and wellbeing of people across Wales. 
The research on the health benefits of intensive engagement with 
creative and cultural activities through art therapy and workshops 
led by artists is well recognised in the literature on cultural impact, 
although there is little evidence on whether any benefits could also 
be gained from less intensive engagement, such as attendance at 
arts events. 

 

 Dai Smith‟s Report “The Arts and Education” flags the 
international evidence that the arts can contribute to raising 
educational attainment, particularly of children from lower socio-

Pack Page 136



 

13 

 

economic backgrounds. Museums and heritage organisations can 
contribute similarly. Helping to raise educational attainment is 
likely to raise people‟s life chances and therefore has the potential 
to be preventative in terms of public spending. That is one of the 
reasons why I am working to increase the contribution that the arts 
and heritage can make to raising educational attainment, working 
with the Education and Skills Minister to follow-up Dai Smith‟s 
Report and the Baroness Kay Andrews Review on culture and 
poverty. 

 

 Cadw‟s work with young offenders and school referral units 
contributes to Welsh Government education and employment 
objectives. Education and the attainment of skills and 
qualifications are widely recognised as major factors in preventing 
children becoming offenders, and reducing the longer-term risks of 
reoffending. 

 
Provision for legislation 
 

51. There is one Bill in the legislative programme within the Culture & 
Sport portfolio which comes within the remit of this Committee, 
namely the Heritage Bill – to deliver Programme for Government 
commitments to develop a legal framework that will improve the 
management and protection of the historic environment of Wales. If 
passed, the Bill will be the first heritage legislation specifically for 
Wales. The Bill is scheduled to be introduced in spring 2015 and 
receive Royal Assent in spring 2016, with implementation from the 
financial year 2016/2017 onwards. 

 
52. An initial assessment of the financial implications of the Bill has been 

made. The legislative proposals have been developed to minimise 
new burdens or duties on local government, owners of assets, 
businesses and members of the public. The majority of the proposals 
are discretionary or do not have financial implications outside those 
that can be met through current departmental budgets, including 
staffing.  Work on the Regulatory Impact Assessment, which will 
include a comprehensive assessment of the financial implications is 
well progressed. There will be no direct or indirect impact on the 
budget in the 2015-16 financial year. 

 
53. There are no known significant impacts on the budget of any UK 

legislation in the portfolio area.  
 

 
 
Ken Skates AM, 
Deputy Minister for Culture, Sport and Tourism 

Pack Page 137



Supplementary Budget June 2013

CULTURE AND SPORT  - DRAFT BUDGET BEL TABLE 2015-16   in £'000s

REVENUE BUDGET - Departmental Expenditure Limit

SPA Actions BEL
BEL 

Number

2014-15            

Supplementary 

Budget 

2015-16 

Indicative 

Plans

2015-16      

Changes

2015-16           Draft 

Budget 

Arts Council of Wales - Running Costs 5800 2,131 2,131 2,131

Arts Council of Wales - Current Expenditure (inc WMC) 5800 30,490 30,240 -700 29,540

Arts Council of Wales - Depreciation 5800 119 119 119

Support for the Arts 5812 668 668 85 753

Total Support and sustain a strong arts sector via the Arts Council and others 33,408 33,158 -615 32,543

Amgueddfa Cymru - National Museum of Wales - Running Costs 5540 23,920 23,820 -250 23,570

Amgueddfa Cymru - National Museum of Wales - Current Receipts 5540 -1,684 -1,684 -1,684

Amgueddfa Cymru - National Museum of Wales - Depreciation 5540 1,120 1,120 1,120

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Museum Services 23,356 23,256 -250 23,006

National Library of Wales - Running Costs/ Current Expenditure 5660 10,341 10,141 10,141

National Library of Wales - Current Receipts 5660 -420 -420 -420

National Library of Wales - Depreciation 5660 1,250 1,250 1,250

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Library Services 11,171 10,971 0 10,971

CyMAL - Current Expenditure 6170 206 206 206

CyMAL - Grants 6170 1,712 1,662 -175 1,487

CyMAL - Peoples' Collection 6170 600 600 -100 500

Strategic Leadership for museum, archive & library services 2,518 2,468 -275 2,193

Total Museums, Archives and Libraries 37,045 36,695 -525 36,170

Sports Council for Wales - Running Costs 5900 1,327 1,327 1,327

Sports Council for Wales - Depreciation 5900 779 779 779

Sport & Active Wales Fund - Current Expenditiure 6010 21,714 21,449 -291 21,158

Sport & Active Wales Fund - Free Swimming 6010 3,546 3,546 3,546

Sport & Active Wales Fund - Current Receipts 6010 -3,658 -3,658 -3,658

Support for Sport & Physical Activity 6012 31 31 31

Total Delivery of effective sports & physical activity programmes 23,739 23,474 -291 23,183

Welsh Books Council - Running Costs 6150 1,103 1,153 1,153

Welsh Books Council - Current Grants 6150 2,623 2,473 -100 2,373

Total Media and Publishing 3,726 3,626 -100 3,526

Cadw - Running Costs/Current Expenditure 2700 12,344 12,304 12,304

Cadw - Grants 2700 2,016 2,016 -250 1,766

Cadw - Current Receipts 2700 -5,250 -5,250 -5,250

Delivery of effective 

sports & physical activity 

programmes

 Delivery of effective sports & physical activity programmes

Media and Publishing Media and Publishing

Conserve, protect, 

sustain and promote 

access to the historic and 

natural environment

Support and sustain a 

strong arts

 sector via the Arts 

Council and others

Support and sustain a strong arts sector via the Arts Council and others

Museums, Archives and 

Libraries

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Museum Services

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Library Services

Conserve, protect, sustain and promote access to the historic and natural environment

Strategic Leadership for museum, archive & library services

1

P
ack P

age 139



Supplementary Budget June 2013Cadw - Depreciation 2700 275 275 275

Cadw - Other non cash 2700 0 0 3,000 3,000

RCAHM - Running Costs/Current Expenditure 6200 1,879 1,874 -150 1,724

RCAHM - Grants 6200 167 167 167

RCAHM - Current Receipts 6200 -84 -84 -84

RCAHM - Depreciation 6200 134 134 134

National Botanic Garden New 660 650 650

Total Conserve, protect, sustain and promote access to the historic environment 12,141 12,086 2,600 14,686

110,059 109,039 1,069 110,108

Less Depreciation & other non-cash -3,677 -3,677 -3,000 -6,677

Near Cash 106,382 105,362 -1,931 103,431

CAPITAL BUDGET - Departmental Expenditure Limit

SPA Actions BEL
BEL 

Number

2014-15            

Supplementary 

Budget 

2015-16 

Indicative 

Plans

2015-16      

Changes

2015-16           Draft 

Budget 

Arts Council of Wales - Capital Investment (inc WMC) 5800 355 355 355

Support for the Arts - Capital Investment (inc NBGW) 5812 0 0 0

Total Support and sustain a strong arts sector via the Arts Council and others 355 355 0 355

Amgueddfa Cymru - NMW - Capital Maintenance Grant 5540 1,100 725 -125 600

Amgueddfa Cymru - NMW - Specimen Purchase Grant 5540 538 538 538

Amgueddfa Cymru - NMW - St. Fagans 5540 125 875 625 1,500

Total Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Museum Services 1,763 2,138 500 2,638

National Library of Wales - Capital Maintenance Grant 5660 925 550 550

National Library of Wales - Specimen Purchase Grant 5660 305 305 305

National Library of Wales - Electronic Legal Deposit 5660 0 0 0

National Library of Wales - Replace Library Roof 5660 0 0 0

National Library of Wales - Conservation and Digital Centre 5660 3,300 200 200

Total Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Library Services 4,530 1,055 0 1,055

CyMAL - Peoples' Collection 6170 50 50 50

CyMAL - Capital 6170 1,000 1,000 1,000

Total Strategic Leadership for museum, archive & library services 1,050 1,050 0 1,050

Total Museums, Archives and Libraries 7,343 4,243 500 4,743

Sport and Active Wales Fund - Capital Expenditure 6010 403 403 403

Sport and Active Wales Fund - Capital Receipts 6010 -58 -58 -58

Sport and Facilities Capital Loan Scheme 6013 0 5,000 5,000

Strategic Leadership for museum, archive & library services

Delivery of effective 

sports & physical activity 

programmes

Delivery of effective sports & physical activity programmes

Conserve, protect, 

sustain and promote 

access to the historic and 

natural environment

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Museum Services

Support and sustain a 

strong arts

 sector via the Arts 

Council and others

Support and sustain a strong arts sector via the Arts Council and others

Museums, Archives and 

Libraries

Conserve, protect, sustain and promote access to the historic and natural environment

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Library Services

2

P
ack P

age 140



Supplementary Budget June 2013Total Delivery of effective sports & physical activity programmes 345 5,345 0 5,345

Media and Publishing Media and Publishing Welsh Books Council - Capital 25 25 35 60

Total Media and Publishing 25 25 35 60

Cadw - Capital Expenditure 2700 5,016 5,016 -725 4,291

RCAHM - Capital Expenditure 6200 47 47 47

RCAHM - Capital Receipts 6200 -32 -32 -32

National Botanic Garden New 95 95 95

Total Conserve, protect, sustain and promote access to the historic environment 5,126 5,126 -725 4,401

Total Capital - Culture and Sport 13,194 15,094 -190 14,904

REVENUE BUDGET - Annually Managed Expenditure

SPA Actions BEL
BEL 

Number

2014-15            

Supplementary 

Budget 

2015-16 

Indicative 

Plans

2015-16      

Changes

2015-16           Draft 

Budget 

Museums Museums  Pensions 5641 2,174 2,391 2,391

Libraries Libraries Pensions 5781 566 622 622

Total Museums, Archives and Libraries 2,740 3,013 0 3,013

Total AME - Culture and Sport 2,740 3,013 0 3,013

SPA Actions BEL
BEL 

Number

2014-15            

Supplementary 

Budget 

2015-16 

Indicative 

Plans

2015-16      

Changes

2015-16           Draft 

Budget 

Culture and Sport - Summary 0 0 0 0

Revenue DEL 110,059 109,039 1,069 110,108

Capital DEL 13,194 15,094 -190 14,904

Total DEL 123,253 124,133 879 125,012

Annually Managed Expenditure 2,740 3,013 0 3,013

Total - Culture and Sport 125,993 127,146 879 128,025

Conserve, protect, 

sustain and promote 

access to the historic and 

natural environment

Museums, Archives and 

Libraries

Conserve, protect, sustain and promote access to the historic and natural environment

3

P
ack P

age 141



 

9 October 2014 - Papers to note 

Paper 

No: 

Issue From Action Point 

Public papers to note 

 

5 

 

 

 

 

Gender-based 

Violence, 

Domestic Abuse 

and Sexual 

Violence (Wales) 

Bill  

South Wales 

Police 

 

 

Agreed to provide the report The South 

Wales Police Plan for Tackling Violence 

Against Women and Girls 2014 – 2017 

 
 

 

Pack Page 142

Agenda Item 9



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 5 
 

 

The South Wales Police approach to 
Violence against women and girls  
and other forms of domestic violence 

 
Tackling violence against women and girls is one of the highest priorities for South Wales 
Police.  It is a strategic priority for the Chief Constable and the Police & Crime Commissioner 
and that is reflected in the way we approach both operational policing and work with our 
partners. 

Immediately on being elected as Police & Crime Commissioner, Alun Michael made clear his 
expectation for South Wales Police to seize the opportunity offered by the statements of 
Welsh Government Ministers to play our part in tackling the unacceptable levels of violence 
against women and girls.   

That sense of urgency is shared by Chief Constable Peter Vaughan and was reflected in the 
Police and Crime Plan for 2013, and again in 2014, and in the joint applications made to the 
Police Improvement Fund. 

 

What we’ve learnt 

To turn intention into action, the Commissioner and the Chief Constable jointly 
commissioned a Thematic Review which led to the publication of a detailed document which 
contains an action plan which now informs all aspects of our work. A copy is attached to this 
note. 

There have been questions raised in some quarters as to whether emphasising violence 
against women and girls risks an unequal response to other forms of violence within 
relationships, including violence by men on men and women on men.   

We wish to take this opportunity to refute that suggestion. 

Each act of violence by one person on another deserves to be treated in accordance 
with the harm and risk presented.  But there are three factors that make tackling 
violence against women and girls a significant priority for the police. 

 The number of incidents is very high 

 The extent of under-reporting is extremely high 

 The risk of serious injury or death is disproportionately high 

South Wales Police data gives a very clear picture of the prevalence of domestic abuse and 
sexual violence and clearly demonstrate the disproportionate impact on women and girls.   

Pack Page 143



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 5 
 
Our review found that both in scale and seriousness women were by far the biggest victims 
of domestic abuse sexual assault and honour-based violence recorded in South Wales. 

 Domestic violence with injury – 78.6% of victims were women 

 Serious sexual offences – 83.8% of victims were women  

 Honour-based violence – 75.4% of victims were women 

It follows that there is a public policy imperative for the police and all other public 
bodies to tackle the level of violence against women and girls which historically has 
been higher in Wales than in some other parts of the UK. That is reflected in our joint 
plan. 

 

Drafting the Bill 

The Chief Constable and the Commissioner have different roles, so most comments on the 

Bill now before the Assembly are the responsibility of the Commissioner but have been 

informed by the operational experience and perspective of the Chief Constable as well as 

the facts of offending set out above.   

It is fully understood that other considerations have to be borne in mind by Ministers and by 

the Assembly, but it will be helpful if the legislation spells out the same clear priority in both 

the title and the content of the Bill that is being pursued by South Wales Police and the 

Commissioner has written to the Minister and the Committee making that point. 

It will be preferable if the clarity of messages from Welsh Government is maintained and 

reinforced in the title of the Bill.  If it is felt that referring only to violence against women 

would be too narrow, expert legal advice sought by the Commissioner shows that the 

emphasis on violence against women and girls could be maintained while also dealing with 

equalities issues by calling it “An Act to make provision in relation to violence against women 

and other domestic and sexual violence”.   

The work of the police will be helped if the Bill is specific about raising awareness of violence 

of this sort and challenging entrenched attitudes in society that tolerate, accept or encourage 

domestic violence and sexual abuse.  There is a need to increase awareness of services 

available to help victims.  

Pack Page 144



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 5 
 
Strengthening partnerships 

The Bill does place responsibilities on local authorities, and that is welcome, not least in view 

of their responsibility under the 1998 Crime and Disorder Act to work with the police and 

others to reduce offending and re-offending.  However we would like to see that 

responsibility extended to other agencies whose input is also vital, not least the NHS and 

Social Housing bodies.   

If a responsibility is placed on all public bodies to require an engagement that is 

proportionate to their general responsibilities it should ensure that they play an appropriate 

role in helping to reduce violence of this sort. 

If the Bill is also strengthened in terms of requiring such bodies to contribute to local 

strategies, in terms of monitoring and in terms of training we would be happy to make a 

commitment to work with them to ensure that South Wales Police contribute fully to joint 

working. 

Finally, it is our experience that our formal and informal education play a vital role in 

changing attitudes within society. The Commissioner has therefore submitted that the Bill 

should include the commitment to include education in relation to violence against women as 

well as about gender inequality and the place of respect and consent as essential elements 

in healthy relationships. When those elements have not been part of a person’s upbringing 

and education the police often have to pick up the pieces and for that reason we welcomed 

the inclusion of such requirements in the White Paper and in statements by Ministers.   

Again we are happy to make a police contribution, as happens to a degree through the work 

of Police School Liaison Officers in South Wales – funded jointly by Welsh Government and 

South Wales Police – but we believe that to be effective there need to be specific 

requirements on all schools.  The Rotherham report makes specific reference to the need for 

these issues to be dealt with explicitly within schools and other educational contexts. 

We welcome proposals to formalise and strengthen best practice around multi agency fora.  
South Wales Police is committed and engaged fully with the MARAC process. Between 1st 
April 2012 – 31st March 2013, 2,242 cases were heard at MARACs across the force area. A 
total of 70% of those were referrals that had originated from the police, with the other 30% of 
referrals coming from partner agencies.  The total number of children involved in these 
cases was 2,869.  

Given the importance of the sharing of information and actions across a number of agencies 
through multi-agency arrangements such as MARACs, it will help if these are put on a 
legislative footing. The benefits of imposing statutory requirements of this sort are already 
evident in respect of other public protection issues such as child protection and protection of 
vulnerable adults.   

Statutory requirements in respect of MARACs should include a requirement for key agencies 
to recognise the MARAC process, to know how to identify and refer appropriate cases, and 
to participate in the MARAC itself.  

It will be welcome if the Government recognises the importance of the role of MARAC co-
ordinator and gives consideration to how the funding arrangements for these posts can be 
put on a sustainable footing. Current arrangements are ad hoc and often very fragile.  

We also wish to make clear that, while policing is not currently a devolved responsibility, our 
work takes place in the context of priorities, policies and agencies which do come directly 

Pack Page 145



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 5 
 
under the aegis of Welsh Government and the Assembly.  The Police play a key role in the 
multi-agency response to Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence and we will do all we can to 
reflect this priority in future versions of the Police and Crime Plan, in partnership working and 
in operational decisions. 

 

The South Wales Police Plan for Tackling Violence Against Women and Girls 2014 – 

2017: 

http://www.southwalescommissioner.org.uk/en/Policy/Violence-Against-Women-and-Girls.aspx 

 

 

 

 

Pack Page 146

http://www.southwalescommissioner.org.uk/en/Policy/Violence-Against-Women-and-Girls.aspx

	Agenda
	2 Scrutiny of Welsh Government 2015-2016 draft budget - Evidence session from the Minister for Finance and Government Business and the Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty
	CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 1 - Minister for Finance and Government Business and Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty

	3 Scrutiny of Welsh Government 2015-2016 draft budget - Evidence session from the Minister for Public Services
	CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 2 - Minister for Public Services

	6 Gender-based Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Bill: discussion of key issues
	Legal advice note in relation to the Gender-based Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Bill

	7 Scrutiny of Welsh Government 2015-2016 draft budget - Evidence session from the Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty
	CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 3 - Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty

	8 Scrutiny of Welsh Government 2015-2016 draft budget - Evidence session from the Deputy Minister for Culture, Sport and Tourism
	CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 4 - Deputy Minister for Culture, Sport and Tourism
	CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 4a - Deputy Minister for Culture, Sport and Tourism - budget table

	9 Papers to note
	CELG(4)-27-14 Paper 5 - South Wales Police additional information


